UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM T-3

FOR APPLICATIONS FOR QUALIFICATION OF INDENTURES UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939

DYNEX CAPITAL, INC.

(Name of applicant)

4551 Cox Road, Suite 300 Glen Allen, Virginia 23060 (Address of principal executive offices)

Securities to be Issued Under the Indenture to be Qualified

9.50 % Senior Notes due 2007

Up to a maximum aggregate principal amount of \$40,000,000

Approximate date of the proposed public offering:

As soon as practicable after the date of this Application for Qualification.

Name and address of agent for service:

STEPHEN J. BENEDETTI, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
DYNEX CAPITAL, INC.
4551 COX ROAD, SUITE 300
GLEN ALLEN, VIRGINIA 23060
(804) 217-5800

COPY TO:

JAMES J. WHEATON, ESQUIRE TROUTMAN SANDERS LLP 2222 CENTRAL PARK AVE, SUITE 2000 VIRGINIA BEACH, VIRGINIA 23462 (757) 687-7719

The obligor hereby amends this application for qualification on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effectiveness until: (i) the 20th day after the filing of a further amendment which specifically states that it shall supersede this amendment or (ii) such date as the Securities and Exchange Commission, acting pursuant to Section 307(c) of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, may determine upon the written request of the obligor.

GENERAL

1. General Information.

- (a) Form of Organization: Corporation
- (b) State under the laws of which organized: Virginia

2. Securities Act Exemption Applicable.

This Form T-3 relates to the offer (the "Offer") by Dynex Capital, Inc., a Virginia corporation ("Dynex" or the "Company") to exchange up to an aggregate of 345,579 shares of its Series A Preferred Stock, up to an aggregate 481,819 shares of its Series B Preferred Stock, and up to an aggregate 479,512 shares of its Series C Preferred Stock (or, in each case, such lesser number of shares as are properly tendered and not properly withdrawn), for 9.50% Senior Notes, due 2007 (the "Senior Notes") subject to the terms and conditions of the Offering Circular which is incorporated by reference in Exhibit T3E(i) to this Form T-3. The Offer is part of a recapitalization transaction in which Dynex (1) seeks to exchange the Senior Notes for outstanding shares of Preferred Stock and (2) is asking shareholders to approve an amendment of the Company's articles of incorporation that will (i) designate and establish the terms of a new Series D Preferred Stock, and (ii) eliminate the Series A Preferred Stock, Series B Preferred Stock and Series C Preferred Stock following their conversion into shares of new Series D Preferred Stock and Common Stock.

The issuance of the Senior Notes is exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), pursuant to the exemption provided by Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act. Section 3(a)(9) provides for an exemption from registration for any security exchanged by an issuer with its existing security holders exclusively where no commission or other remuneration is paid or given directly or indirectly for soliciting such exchange. There will not be any sales of securities of the same class as the Senior Notes (other than pursuant to the Offer) by the Company or by or through an underwriter at or about the same time as the transaction for which the exemption is claimed. No consideration has been, or is to be given, directly or indirectly, to any person in connection with the transaction, except for customary payments to be made in respect of preparation, printing, and mailing of the Offering Circular in connection with the Offer and related documents and the engagement of MacKenzie Partners, Inc., as information agent for the Company, and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as exchange agent for the Company and as trustee under the Indenture. No shareholder of the Company has made or will be requested to make any cash payment to the Company in connection with the Offer.

AFFILIATIONS

3. Affiliates.

The Company owns 100% of the capital stock of each of the subsidiaries set forth below.

Issuer Holding Corp.
Dynex Securities Corporation
GLS Capital Services, Inc.
Dynex Commercial Services, Inc.
SMFC Funding Corporation

See Item 4 for directors and executive officers of the Company, some of whom may be deemed to be affiliates of the Company by virtue of their position.

MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL

4. Directors and Executive Officers

The following persons are the directors and/or executive officers of Dynex as of December 31, 2003:

Name	Office
Thomas B. Akin	Director
J. Sidney Davenport	Director
Thomas H. Potts	Director
Donald B. Vaden	Director
Eric P. Von der Porten	Director
Leon A. Feldman	Director
Barry Igdaloff	Director
Stephen J. Benedetti	Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary

The address of each director and executive officer listed above is c/o Dynex Capital, Inc., 4551 Cox Road, Suite 300, Glen Allen, Virginia 23060.

5. Principal Owners of Voting Securities.

As of January 7, 2004, to the best of the Company's knowledge, no person beneficially owned more than 10% of its outstanding voting securities.

6. Underwriters.

- (a) Not applicable.
- (b) Not applicable.

CAPITAL SECURITIES

7. Capitalization.

(a) Authorized Classes of Securities of Dynex

As of January 7, 2004.

Title of Class	Amount Authorized	Amount Outstanding
Common Stock	100,000,000 shares	10,873,903 shares
Preferred Stock	50,000,000 shares	1,866,677 shares*
9.5% Senior Notes due 2005	\$32,079,025	\$10,049,000

* The outstanding Preferred Stock consists of the following:

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock
Series C Convertible Preferred Stock
Series C Convertible Preferred Stock
688,189 shares
684,893 shares

(b) Outline of Voting Rights

Common Stock. Holders of shares of the Company's common stock are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Company's Annual Meeting. Each share of common stock outstanding is entitled to one vote for each of the directors to be elected by the holders of common stock at the Annual Meeting and one vote on each other matter presented to common stockholders.

Preferred Stock. Holders of Preferred Stock are entitled to elect directors to the Company's Board of Directors when (i) dividends to holders of Preferred Stock are in arrears by six quarters, or (ii) the consolidated shareholders' equity of the Company falls below certain specified levels. Holders of shares of the Company's Preferred Stock are currently entitled to notice of, and to vote as a single class at, the Company's Annual Meeting for the purpose of electing two directors to the Company's Board of Directors. Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Incorporation, as amended, each share of Preferred Stock is entitled to one vote per \$24.00 of stated liquidation preference. The stated liquidation preference of the Series A Preferred Stock is \$24.00 per share, and the stated liquidation preference of the Series C Preferred Stock is \$30.00 per share. Accordingly, holders of the Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to 1.000 vote per share, holders of the Series B Preferred Stock are entitled to 1.021 votes per share, and holders of Series C Preferred Stock are entitled to 1.250 votes per share. The holders of Preferred Stock will cease to have the right to elect directors to the Company's Board of Directors.

INDENTURE SECURITIES

8. Analysis of Indenture Provisions.

The following discussion is a description of certain provisions of the Indenture to which this filing relates, as required by Section 305(a)(2) of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended (the "Act"). This discussion is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Indenture, a copy of which is filed as Exhibit T3C hereto.

(a) Events of Default: Withholding Notice

An Event of Default is defined in the Indenture as being, among other things: default in payment of the principal on the Senior Notes when due, at maturity, upon redemption or otherwise, including failure by the Company to purchase the Senior Notes when required (whether or not such payment shall be prohibited by the subordination provisions of the Indenture); default for 30 days in payment of any installment of interest on the Senior Notes; default by the Company for 90 days after notice in the observance or performance of any other covenants in the Indenture; failure to pay certain indebtedness for money borrowed under any mortgage, indenture, or instrument aggregating \$25 million or more; final judgments or decrees entered into by a court of competent jurisdiction against the Company, which have not been vacated, discharged, satisfied or stayed pending appeal within 60 days of entry, involving liabilities of \$40 million or more after deducting the portion of such liabilities accepted by an insurance company; or certain events involving bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization of the Company. The Indenture provides that the trustee may withhold notice to the holders of Senior Notes of any default (except in payment of principal or interest with respect to the Senior Notes) if the trustee, in good faith, considers it in the interest of the holders of the Senior Notes to do so.

The Senior Note Indenture provides that if an Event of Default (other than an Event of Default with respect to certain events, including bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization of the Company) shall have occurred and be continuing, the trustee or the holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Senior Notes then outstanding may declare the principal on the Senior Notes to be due and payable immediately, but if the Company shall pay or deposit with the trustee a sum sufficient to pay all matured installments of interest on all Senior Notes and the principal on all Senior Notes that have become due other than by acceleration and certain expenses and fees of the trustee and if all defaults (except the nonpayment of interest on and principal of any Senior Notes which shall have become due by acceleration) shall have been cured or waived and certain other conditions are met, such declaration may be canceled and past defaults may be waived by the holders of a majority in principal amount of the Senior Notes then outstanding.

The holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Senior Notes then outstanding shall have the right to direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceedings for any remedy available to the trustee, subject to certain limitations specified in the Indenture. The Indenture provides that, subject to the duty of the trustee following an Event of Default to act with the required standard of care, the trustee will not be under an obligation to exercise any of its rights or powers under the Indenture at the request or direction of any of the holders, unless the trustee receives satisfactory indemnity against any associated costs, liability or expense.

(b) Authentication and Delivery

Pursuant to the Indenture, the Trustee may appoint an authenticating agent that shall be authorized to act on its behalf and subject to its direction in the authentication and delivery of notes in connection with the original issuance thereof and transfers and exchanges of notes as fully to all intents and purposes as though the authenticating agent had been expressly authorized by this Indenture and those sections to authenticate and deliver notes. For all purposes of the Indenture, the authentication and delivery of notes by the authenticating agent shall be deemed to be authentication and delivery of such Senior Notes "by the Trustee" and a certificate of authentication executed on behalf of the Trustee by an authenticating agent shall be deemed to satisfy any requirement in the Indenture or in the notes for the Trustee's certificate of authentication. Such authenticating agent shall at all times be a person eligible to serve as Trustee.

The Senior Notes will be issued in exchange for Preferred Stock pursuant to the Offer. Consequently, the Company will receive no proceeds from the issuance of the Senior Notes.

(c) The release of any property subject to the lien on the property.

The Senior Notes are not secured by any assets of the Company.

(d) Satisfaction and Discharge of the Indenture

The Senior Note Indenture will cease to be of further effect as to all outstanding Senior Notes (except as to (i) rights of the holders of Senior Notes to receive payments of principal and interest on the Senior Notes, (ii) our right of optional redemption, (iii) rights of registration of transfer and exchange, (iv) substitution of apparently mutilated, defaced, destroyed, lost or stolen Senior Notes, (v) rights, obligations and immunities of the trustee under the Indenture and (vi) rights of the holders of Senior Notes as beneficiaries of the Indenture with respect to the property so deposited with the trustee payable to all or any of them) if (A) we will have paid or caused to be paid the principal and interest on the Senior Notes as and when the same will have become due and payable or (B) all outstanding Senior Notes (except lost,

stolen or destroyed Senior Notes which have been replaced or paid) have been delivered to the trustee for cancellation or (C) (x) the Senior Notes not previously delivered to the trustee for cancellation will have become due and payable or are by their terms to become due and payable within one year or are to be called for redemption under arrangements satisfactory to the trustee upon delivery of notice and (y) we will have irrevocably deposited with the trustee, as trust funds, cash, in an amount sufficient to pay principal of and interest on the outstanding Senior Notes, to maturity or redemption, as the case may be. Such trust may only be established if such deposit will not result in a breach or violation of, or constitute a default under, any agreement or instrument pursuant to which we are a party or by which we are bound and we have delivered to the trustee an officers' certificate and an opinion of counsel, each stating that all conditions related to such defeasance have been complied with.

The Senior Note Indenture will also cease to be in effect (except as described in clauses (i) through (vi) in the immediately preceding paragraph) and the indebtedness on all outstanding Senior Notes will be discharged on the 123rd day after the irrevocable deposit by the Company with the trustee, in trust, specifically pledged as security for, and dedicated solely to, the benefit of the holders of the Senior Notes, of cash, U.S. Government Obligations (as defined in the Indenture) or a combination thereof, in an amount sufficient, in the opinion of a nationally recognized firm of independent public accountants expressed in a written certification thereof delivered to the trustee, to pay the principal and interest on the Senior Notes then outstanding in accordance with the terms of the Indenture and the Senior Notes ("legal defeasance"). Such legal defeasance may only be effected if (i) no Event of Default has occurred or is continuing, (ii) such deposit will not result in a breach or violation of, or constitute a default under, any agreement or instrument to which the Company is a party or by which it is bound, (iii) the Company has delivered to the trustee an opinion of counsel stating that (A) the Company has received from, or there has been published by, the Internal Revenue Service a ruling or (B) since the date of the Indenture, there has been a change in the applicable federal income tax law, in either case to the effect that, based thereon, the holders of the Senior Notes will not recognize income, gain or loss for federal income tax purposes as a result of such deposit, defeasance and discharge by the Company and will be subject to federal income tax on the same amount and in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such deposit, defeasance and discharge had not occurred, (iv) the Company has delivered to the trustee an opinion of counsel to the effect that after the 123rd day following the deposit, the trust funds will not be subject to the effect of any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or similar laws affecting creditors' rights generally and (v) the Company has delivered to the trustee an officers certificate and an opinion of counsel stating that all conditions related to the defeasance have been complied with. The Company may also be released from its obligations under the covenants contained in the "Change of Control" and "Consolidation, Merger, Sale, Conveyance, Transfer and Lease" sections of the Indenture with respect to the Senior Notes outstanding on the 123rd day after the irrevocable deposit by the Company with the trustee, in trust, specifically pledged as security for, and dedicated solely to, the benefit of the holders of the Senior Notes, of cash, U.S. Government Obligations or a combination thereof, in an amount sufficient in the opinion of a nationally recognized firm of independent public accountants expressed in a written certification thereof delivered to the trustee, to pay the principal and interest on the Senior Notes then outstanding in accordance with the terms of the Indenture and the Senior Notes ("covenant defeasance").

Such covenant defeasance may only be effected if (i) no Event of Default has occurred or is continuing (ii) such deposit will not result in a breach or violation of, or constitute a default under, any agreement or instrument to which the Company is a party or by which it is bound, (iii) the Company has delivered to the trustee an officers certificate and an opinion of counsel to the effect that the holders of the Senior Notes will not recognize income, gain or loss for federal income tax purposes as a result of such deposit and covenant defeasance by the Company and will be subject to federal income tax on the same amount, in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such deposit and covenant defeasance had not occurred, (iv) the Company has delivered to the trustee an opinion of

counsel to the effect that after the 123rd day following the deposit, the trust funds will not be subject to the effect of any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or similar laws affecting creditors' rights generally and (v) the Company has delivered to the trustee an officers certificate and an opinion of counsel stating that all conditions related to the covenant defeasance have been complied with.

(e) Evidence of Compliance

Pursuant to the Indenture, The Company shall deliver to the Trustee, within 120 days after the end of each fiscal year of the Company, an officers' certificate stating whether or not, to the best knowledge of the signers, the Company is in compliance (without regard to periods of grace or notice requirements) with all conditions and covenants under the Indenture, and if the Company shall not be in compliance, specifying such non-compliance and the nature and status thereof of which such signer may have knowledge. The Company shall file with the Trustee written notice of the occurrence of any default or Event of Default within ten days of its becoming aware of any such default or Event of Default.

9. Other Obligors.

Not applicable.

Contents of Application for Qualification. This application for qualification comprises –

- (a) Pages numbered 1 to 10, consecutively;
- (b) The statement of eligibility and qualification of Wachovia Bank, National Association, as trustee, on Form T-1 under the indenture to be qualified; and
- (c) The following attached as exhibits in addition to those filed as part of the Form T-1 statement of eligibility and qualification of the trustee:

Exhibit T3A

- (i) Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant, effective as of February 2, 1988 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to the Company's Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-10783) filed March 21, 1997)
- (ii) Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, effective December 29, 1989 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.10 to the Company's Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-10783) filed March 21, 1997)
- (iii) Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, effective October 19, 1992 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Company's Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-10783) filed March 21, 1997)
- (iv) Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, effective August 17, 1992 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.11 to the Company's Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-10783) filed March 21, 1997)
- (v) Amendment to Articles of Incorporation, effective June 27, 1995 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K (No. 000-20507), dated June 26, 1995)

(vi)	Amendment to Articles of Incorporation, effective October 23, 1995 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K (No. 000-20507), dated October 19, 1995)
(vii)	Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, effective October 9, 1996 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K (No. 001-09819), filed October 15, 1996)
(viii)	Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, effective October 10, 1996 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K (No. 001-09819), filed October 15, 1996)
(ix)	Amendment to Articles of Incorporation, effective April 25, 1997 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.10 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 001-09819) for the quarter ended March 31, 1997)
(x)	Amendment to Articles of Incorporation, effective May 5, 1997 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.11 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 001-09819) for the quarter ended March 31, 1997)
(xi)	Amendment to Articles of Incorporation, effective June 17, 1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit T3A(xi) to the Company's Application for Qualification of Indentures on Form T-3 (No. 022-28657) filed January 9, 2003)
(xii)	Amendment to Articles of Incorporation, effective August 2, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit T3A(xii) to the Company's Application for Qualification of Indentures on Form T-3 (No. 022-28657) filed January 9, 2003)
Exhibit T3B	Amended Bylaws of the Company (incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1992, as amended)
Exhibit T3C	Form of Indenture between the Company and Wachovia Bank, National Association as Trustee (filed herewith)
Exhibit T3D	Not applicable.
Exhibit T3E	
(i)	Offering Circular (incorporated by reference to Exhibit (a)(1)(A) to the Company's Schedule TO-I (No. 005-41043), filed January 8, 2004)
(ii)*	Series A Preferred Stock Letter of Transmittal
(iii)*	Series B Preferred Stock Letter of Transmittal
(iv)*	Series C Preferred Stock Letter of Transmittal
(v)*	Notice of Guaranteed Delivery
(vi)*	Letter to Brokers, Dealers, Commercial Banks, Trust Companies and Other Nominees
	0

(vii)*	Letter to Clients from Brokers, Dealers, Commercial Banks, Trust Companies and other Nominees
--------	---

(viii)* Guidelines for Certification of Taxpayer Identification Number on Substitute Form W-9

Exhibit T3F Cross Reference Sheet showing the location in the Indenture of the provisions inserted therein pursuant to Sections 310 through 318(a), inclusive, of the Act (included in Exhibit T3C hereof)

^{*}To be filed by amendment.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, the applicant, Dynex Capital, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of Virginia, has duly caused this application to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, and its seal to be hereunto affixed and attested, all in the city of Dallas and State of Texas, on the 26th day of January, 2004.

(SEAL) DYNEX CAPITAL, INC.

By: /s/ Stephen J. Benedetti

Name: Stephen J. Benedetti

Title: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and Secretary

Attest: /s/ Russell Parrish

Name: Russell Parrish

DYNEX CAPITAL, INC.

Issuer

AND

WACHOVIA BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

Trustee

INDENTURE

Dated as of ______, 2004

9.50 % Senior Notes Due 2007

CROSS-REFERENCE TABLE*

Trust In	ndenture Act Section	Indenture Section
310	(a)(1)	7.10
	(a)(2)	7.10
	(a)(3)	N.A.
	(a)(4)	N.A.
	(a)(5)	7.10
	(b)	7.9
	(c)	N.A.
311	(a)	7.14
	(b)	7.14
	(c)	N.A.
312	(a)	2.5(a); 5.1
	(b)	13.2
	(c)	13.2
313	(a)	7.2
	(b)(1)	N.A.
	(b)(2)	7.2
	(c)	7.2
	(d)	7.2
314	(a)	4.7(a); 5.2
	(b)	N.A.
	(c)(1)	13.4
	(c)(2)	13.4
	(c)(3)	N.A.
	(d)	N.A.
	(e)	13.4
215	(f)	N.A. 714)
315	(a)	7.1(b)
	(b)	6.8
	(c)	7.1(a)
	(d)	7.1(c) 6.9
316	(e) (a) (last sentence)	8.4
310		6.7
	(a)(1)(A) (a)(1)(B)	6.7
	(a)(1)(b) (a)(2)	0.7 N.A.
	(a)(2) (b)	N.A. 6.4
	(b) (c)	8.1
317	(c) (a)	6.2
517	(a) (b)	4.4
318	(a)	13.7; 13.8
210	(")	15.7, 15.0

N.A. means "not applicable".

* This Cross-Reference Table is not part of the Indenture.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		PAGE
	ARTICLE I	
	DEFINITIONS	
Section 1.1	DEFINITIONS	1
Section 1.2	INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE OF TRUST INDENTURE ACT	6
Section 1.3	RULES OF CONSTRUCTION	7
	ARTICLE II	
	ISSUE, DESCRIPTION, EXECUTION, REGISTRATION AND EXCHANGE OF NOTES	
Section 2.1	DESIGNATION, AMOUNT AND ISSUE OF NOTES	8
Section 2.2	FORM OF NOTES	8
Section 2.3	DATE AND DENOMINATION OF NOTES; PAYMENTS OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST	8
Section 2.4	EXECUTION OF NOTES	10
Section 2.5	EXCHANGE AND TRANSFER OF NOTES; RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER; DEPOSITORY	10
Section 2.6	MUTILATED, DESTROYED, LOST OR STOLEN NOTES	13
Section 2.7	TEMPORARY NOTES	14
Section 2.8	CANCELLATION OF NOTES PAID, ETC	15
Section 2.9	CUSIP NUMBERS	15
Section 2.10	RANKING	15
	ARTICLE III	
	REDEMPTION AND REPURCHASE OF NOTES	
Section 3.1	REDEMPTION PRICES	16
Section 3.2	NOTICE OF REDEMPTION; SELECTION OF NOTES	16
Section 3.3	PAYMENT OF NOTES CALLED FOR REDEMPTION	17
Section 3.4	REPURCHASE OF NOTES UPON A CHANGE OF CONTROL	18
	ARTICLE IV	
	PARTICULAR COVENANTS OF THE COMPANY	
Section 4.1	PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL, PREMIUM AND INTEREST	19
Section 4.2	MAINTENANCE OF OFFICE OR AGENCY	20

Section 4.3 Section 4.4 Section 4.5 Section 4.6 Section 4.7 Section 4.8 Section 4.9 Section 4.10 Section 4.11	APPOINTMENTS TO FILL VACANCIES IN TRUSTEE'S OFFICE PROVISIONS AS TO PAYING AGENT CORPORATE EXISTENCE STAY, EXTENSION AND USURY LAWS COMPLIANCE STATEMENT; NOTICE OF DEFAULTS LIMITATION ON DIVIDEND AND OTHER PAYMENT RESTRICTIONS AFFECTING SUBSIDIARIES TAXES INSURANCE LIMITATION ON RESTRICTED PAYMENTS	20 20 21 22 22 22 22 23 23
Section 4.11 Section 4.12	LIMITATION ON TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES	23
	ARTICLE V	
	NOTEHOLDERS' LISTS AND REPORTS BY THE COMPANY	
Section 5.1 Section 5.2	NOTEHOLDERS' LISTS REPORTS BY COMPANY	24 24
	ARTICLE VI	
	DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES	
Section 6.1 Section 6.2 Section 6.3 Section 6.4 Section 6.5 Section 6.6 Section 6.7 Section 6.8 Section 6.9	EVENTS OF DEFAULT PAYMENTS OF NOTES ON DEFAULT; SUIT THEREFOR APPLICATION OF MONIES COLLECTED BY TRUSTEE PROCEEDINGS BY NOTEHOLDER PROCEEDINGS BY TRUSTEE REMEDIES CUMULATIVE AND CONTINUING DIRECTION OF PROCEEDINGS AND WAIVER OF DEFAULTS BY MAJORITY OF NOTEHOLDERS NOTICE OF DEFAULTS UNDERTAKING TO PAY COSTS ARTICLE VII	25 27 28 29 30 30 30 31
	CONCERNING THE TRUSTEE	
Section 7.1 Section 7.2 Section 7.3 Section 7.4 Section 7.5 Section 7.6 Section 7.7	DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF TRUSTEE REPORTS BY TRUSTEE TO HOLDERS RELIANCE ON DOCUMENTS, OPINIONS, ETC NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR RECITALS, ETC TRUSTEE, PAYING AGENTS OR REGISTRAR MAY OWN NOTES MONIES TO BE HELD IN TRUST COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES OF TRUSTEE	31 32 33 34 34 34 34

Section 7.8	OFFICERS' CERTIFICATE AS EVIDENCE	35
Section 7.9	CONFLICTING INTERESTS OF TRUSTEE	35
Section 7.10	ELIGIBILITY OF TRUSTEE	35
Section 7.11	RESIGNATION OR REMOVAL OF TRUSTEE	36
Section 7.12	ACCEPTANCE BY SUCCESSOR TRUSTEE	37
Section 7.13	SUCCESSOR, BY MERGER, ETC	37
Section 7.14	LIMITATION ON RIGHTS OF TRUSTEE AS CREDITOR	38
	ARTICLE VIII	
	CONCERNING THE NOTEHOLDERS	
Section 8.1	ACTION BY NOTEHOLDERS	38
Section 8.2	PROOF OF EXECUTION BY NOTEHOLDERS	38
Section 8.3	WHO ARE DEEMED ABSOLUTE OWNERS	38
Section 8.4	COMPANY-OWNED NOTES DISREGARDED	39
Section 8.5	REVOCATION OF CONSENTS, FUTURE HOLDERS BOUND	39
	ARTICLE IX	
	SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES	
Section 9.1	SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES WITHOUT CONSENT OF NOTEHOLDERS	40
Section 9.2	SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES WITH CONSENT OF NOTEHOLDERS	41
Section 9.3	EFFECT OF SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES	41
Section 9.4	NOTATION ON NOTES	42
Section 9.5	EVIDENCE OF COMPLIANCE OF SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE TO BE FURNISHED TO THE TRUSTEE	42
	ARTICLE X	
	CONSOLIDATION, MERGER, SALE, CONVEYANCE, TRANSFER AND LEASE	
Section 10.1	COMPANY MAY CONSOLIDATE, ETC. ON CERTAIN TERMS	42
Section 10.2	SUCCESSOR COMPANY TO BE SUBSTITUTED	43
Section 10.3	OPINION OF COUNSEL TO BE GIVEN TO TRUSTEE	43
	ARTICLE XI	
	SATISFACTION AND DISCHARGE OF INDENTURE; UNCLAIMED MONEYS	
Section 11.1	LEGAL DEFEASANCE AND COVENANT DEFEASANCE OF THE NOTES	43

Section 11.2 Section 11.3 Section 11.4 Section 11.5 Section 11.6 Section 11.7	TERMINATION OF OBLIGATIONS UPON CANCELLATION OF THE NOTES SURVIVAL OF CERTAIN OBLIGATIONS ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF DISCHARGE BY TRUSTEE APPLICATION OF TRUST ASSETS REPAYMENT TO THE COMPANY; UNCLAIMED MONEY REINSTATEMENT	45 46 46 46 47 47
	ARTICLE XII	
	IMMUNITY OF INCORPORATORS, SHAREHOLDERS, OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS	
Section 12.1	INDENTURE AND NOTES SOLELY CORPORATE OBLIGATIONS	47
	ARTICLE XIII	
	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	
Section 13.1 Section 13.2 Section 13.3	ADDRESSES FOR NOTICES, ETC. COMMUNICATIONS BY HOLDERS WITH OTHER HOLDERS GOVERNING LAW EVALUATION OF COMMUNICATION WITH COMMUNICATIONS PRECEDENT, CERTIFICATES TO TRUSTEE	48 48 48
Section 13.4 Section 13.5 Section 13.6 Section 13.7	EVIDENCE OF COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS PRECEDENT; CERTIFICATES TO TRUSTEE LEGAL HOLIDAYS NO SECURITY INTEREST CREATED TRUST INDENTURE ACT	49 49 49 49
Section 13.8 Section 13.9 Section 13.10 Section 13.11 Section 13.12	TRUST INDENTURE ACT CONTROLS BENEFITS OF INDENTURE TABLE OF CONTENTS, HEADINGS, ETC. AUTHENTICATING AGENT EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS	50 50 50 50 50

INDENTURE, dated as of	, 2004, by and between DYNEX CAPITAL, INC., a Virginia corporation (the "Company"), and WACHOVIA BANK, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION, a national banking association	ı (the "Trustee").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, for its lawful corporate purposes, the Company has duly authorized the issuance of its 9.50% Senior Notes Due 2007 (the "Notes"), in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed \$40,000,000 and to provide the terms and conditions upon which the Notes are to be authenticated, issued and delivered, the Company has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Indenture; and

WHEREAS, the Notes will be originally issued solely in global form, and in the event that the Company issues Notes in definitive form, such issuance will be accompanied by a supplement to this Indenture including the form of definitive Notes; and

WHEREAS, the Notes, the certificate of authentication to be borne by the Notes, a form of assignment, a form of option to require repurchase by the Company upon a Change of Control (as hereinafter defined), and a certificate of transfer to be borne by the Notes are to be substantially in the forms hereinafter provided for; and

WHEREAS, all acts and things necessary to make the Notes, when executed by the Company and authenticated and delivered by the Trustee or a duly authorized authenticating agent, as in this Indenture provided, the valid, binding and legal obligations of the Company, and to constitute these presents a valid agreement according to its terms, have been done and performed, and the execution of this Indenture and the issuance hereunder of the Notes have in all respects been duly authorized.

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS INDENTURE WITNESSETH:

That in order to declare the terms and conditions upon which the Notes are, and are to be, authenticated, issued and delivered, and in consideration of the premises and of the purchase and acceptance of the Notes by the holders thereof, the Company covenants and agrees with the Trustee for the equal and proportionate benefit of the respective holders from time to time of the Notes (except as otherwise provided below) as follows:

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS

Section 1.1 Definitions.

The terms defined in this Section 1.1 (except as herein otherwise expressly provided or unless the context otherwise requires) for all purposes of this Indenture and of any indenture supplemental hereto shall have the respective meanings specified in this Section 1.1. All other terms used in this Indenture that are defined in the Trust Indenture Act (as hereinafter defined) or

that are by reference defined in the Securities Act (as hereinafter defined), except as herein otherwise expressly provided for or unless the context otherwise requires, shall have the meanings assigned to such terms in said Trust Indenture Act and in said Securities Act as in force on the date of this Indenture. The words "herein," "hereof," "hereunder" and words of similar import refer to this Indenture as a whole and not to any particular Article or Section.

"Affiliate". An "Affiliate" of any specified person shall mean an "affiliate" as defined in Rule 144(a) as promulgated under the Securities Act.

"Board of Directors". The term "Board of Directors" shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company or a committee of such Board of Directors duly authorized to act for it.

"Board Resolution". The term "Board Resolution" shall mean a copy of a resolution certified by the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the Company to have been duly adopted by the Board of Directors and to be in full force and effect on the date of such certification.

"Business Day". The term "Business Day" shall mean a day, other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a day on which banking institutions in the State and City of New York or the City of Richmond, Virginia are authorized or obligated by law or executive order to close or a day that is declared a national holiday or a New York or Virginia state holiday.

"Capital Stock". The term "Capital Stock" of any person shall mean any and all shares, interests, participations or other equivalents (however designated) of such person's corporate stock or any and all equivalent ownership interests in a person (other than a corporation) whether now outstanding or issued after the date hereof.

"Cede". The term "Cede" shall mean Cede & Co., a nominee of the Depository.

"Change of Control". The term "Change of Control" shall have the meaning specified in Section 3.4(d).

"Change of Control Purchase Price". The term "Change of Control Purchase Price" shall have the meaning specified in Section 3.4(a).

"Change of Control Purchase Date". The term "Change of Control Purchase Date" shall have the meaning specified in Section 3.4(a).

"Change of Control Offer". The term "Change of Control Offer" shall have the meaning specified in Section 3.4(a).

"Commission". The term "Commission" shall mean the United States Securities and Exchange Commission, as from time to time constituted, created under the Exchange Act or, if at any time after the execution of this instrument such Commission is not existing and performing the duties now assigned to it under the Trust Indenture Act, the body performing such duties at such time.

- "Company". The term "Company" shall mean Dynex Capital, Inc., a Virginia corporation, and subject to the provisions of Article X, shall include its successors and assigns.
- "Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee". The term "Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee," or other similar term, shall mean the office of the Trustee at which at any particular time its corporate trust business shall be principally administered, which office at the date of this Indenture is located at 1021 East Cary Street, Richmond, Virginia 23219. Attention: Corporate Trust Administration VA 9646.
 - "Covenant Defeasance". The term "covenant defeasance" shall have the meaning specified in Section 11.1(c).
- "Custodian". The term "Custodian" shall mean the Trustee, as custodian for Cede pursuant to Section 2.5 with respect to the Notes in global form, or any successor entity thereto.
 - "Default". The term "Default" shall mean any event that is, or after notice or passage of time, or both, would be, an Event of Default.
 - "Defaulted Interest". The term "Defaulted Interest" shall have the meaning specified in Section 2.3.
- "Definitive Notes; In Definitive Form". The term "Definitive Notes" shall mean the Notes in definitive form. Any reference to Notes "in definitive form" shall mean definitive Notes.
- "Depository". The term "Depository" shall mean, with respect to the Notes issuable or issued in whole or in part in global form, the person specified in Section 2.5(b) as the Depository with respect to the Notes, until a successor shall have been appointed and become such pursuant to the applicable provisions of this Indenture, and thereafter, "Depository" shall mean or include such successor.
- "Disqualified Stock". The term "Disqualified Stock" means, with respect to any Person, any Capital Stock which, by its terms (or by the terms of any security into which it is convertible or for which it is exchangeable), or upon the happening of any event, matures or is mandatorily redeemable, pursuant to a sinking fund obligation or otherwise, or is exchangeable for indebtedness, or is redeemable at the option of the holder thereof, in whole or in part on or prior to the stated maturity.
 - "Event of Default". The term "Event of Default" shall mean any event specified in Section 6.1(a) through (g).
 - "Exchange Act". The term "Exchange Act" shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
 - "Global Note". The term "Global Note" shall mean the note in global form as specified in Exhibit A.

"Indenture". The term "Indenture" shall mean this instrument as originally executed or, if amended or supplemented as herein provided, as so amended or supplemented.

"Legal Defeasance". The term "Legal Defeasance" shall have the meaning specified in Section 11.1(b).

"Note or Notes". The terms "Note" or "Notes" shall mean any one or more, as the case may be, of the 9.50% Senior Notes Due 2007 authenticated and delivered under this Indenture.

"Noteholder; Holder". The term "Noteholder" or "holder" as applied to any Note, or other similar term (but excluding the term "beneficial holder"), shall mean any person in whose name at the time a particular Note is registered on the Note Registrar's books.

"Note Register". The term "Note Register" shall have the meaning specified in Section 2.5(a).

"Note Registrar". The term "Note Registrar" shall have the meaning specified in Section 2.5(a).

"Officers' Certificate". The term "Officers' Certificate," when used with respect to the Company, shall mean a certificate signed by two authorized officers which shall include (a) any of the President, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Operating Officer or the Chief Financial Officer and (b) any Treasurer or Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Company, that is delivered to the Trustee. Each such certificate shall include the statements provided for in Section 13.4 if and to the extent required by the provisions of such Section.

"Opinion of Counsel". The term "Opinion of Counsel" shall mean an opinion in writing signed by legal counsel, who may be an employee of or counsel to the Company or other counsel acceptable to the Trustee, that is delivered to the Trustee. Each such opinion shall include the statements provided for in Section 13.4 if and to the extent required by the provisions of such Section.

"Outstanding". The term "Outstanding" with reference to Notes as of any particular time shall mean, subject to the provisions of Section 8.4, all Notes authenticated and delivered by the Trustee under this Indenture, except

- (a) Notes theretofore canceled by the Trustee or delivered to the Trustee for cancellation;
- (b) Notes, or portions thereof, for which monies in the necessary amount shall have been deposited in trust with the Trustee for payment, redemption or repurchase; provided that if such Notes are to be redeemed prior to the maturity thereof, notice of such redemption shall have been given pursuant to Article III or provision satisfactory to the Trustee shall have been made for giving such notice; and

(c) Notes paid or exchanged pursuant to Section 2.5 hereof or Notes in lieu of or in substitution for which other Notes shall have been authenticated and delivered pursuant to the terms of Section 2.6 unless proof satisfactory to the Trustee is presented that any such Notes are held by bona fide holders in due course shall not be deemed outstanding.

"Payment Date". The term "Payment Date" shall mean each March 31 and September 30.

"Payment Default". The term "Payment Default" shall have the meaning specified in Section 6.1(d).

"Person". The term "person" shall mean a corporation, an association, a partnership, a limited liability company, an individual, a joint venture, a joint stock company, a trust, an unincorporated organization or a government or an agency or a political subdivision thereof.

"Predecessor Note". The term "Predecessor Note" of any particular Note shall mean every previous Note evidencing all or a portion of the same debt as that evidenced by such particular Note; and, for the purposes of this definition, any Note authenticated and delivered under Section 2.6 in lieu of a lost, destroyed or stolen Note shall be deemed to evidence the same debt as the lost, destroyed or stolen Note.

"Record Date". The term "record date" with respect to any Payment Date shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.3 hereof.

"Responsible Officer". The term "Responsible Officer" shall mean with respect to the Trustee, an officer of the Trustee assigned and duly authorized by the Trustee to administer its corporate trust matters who has direct responsibility for the administration of this Indenture.

"Restricted Payment". The term "Restricted Payment" means any of the following: (i) the declaration or payment of any dividend or any other distribution on Capital Stock of the Company or any payment made to the direct or indirect holders (in all their capacities as such) of Capital Stock of the Company (other than dividends or distributions payable solely in Capital Stock (other than Disqualified Stock) or in options, warrants or other rights to purchase Capital Stock (other than Disqualified Stock); (ii) the purchase, redemption or other acquisition or retirement for value of any Capital Stock of the Company or (iii) the making of any principal payment on, or the purchase, defeasance, repurchase, redemption or other acquisition or retirement for value, prior to any scheduled maturity, scheduled repayment or scheduled sinking fund payment, of any indebtedness existing on the Issue Date which is subordinated in right of payment to the Notes (other than indebtedness acquired in anticipation of satisfying a sinking fund obligation, principal installment or final maturity, in each case due within one year of the date of acquisition and other than calls and resecuritizations of non-recourse obligations.)

"Securities Act". The term "Securities Act" shall mean the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

"Subsidiary". The term "Subsidiary" of any specified person shall mean (i) a corporation, a majority of whose Capital Stock with voting power under ordinary circumstances to elect directors is at the time directly or indirectly owned by such person or (ii) any other person (other than a corporation) in which such person or such person and a Subsidiary or Subsidiaries of such person or a Subsidiaries of such person or a Subsidiaries of such person directly or indirectly, at the date of determination thereof, has at least majority ownership.

"Successor Company". The term "Successor Company" shall have the meaning specified in Section 10.1.

"Trust Indenture Act". The term "Trust Indenture Act" shall mean the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, as it was in force at the date of execution of this Indenture, except as provided in Sections 9.3 and 13.8; provided that in the event said Trust Indenture Act of 1939 is amended after the date hereof, the term "Trust Indenture Act" shall mean, to the extent required by such amendment, said Trust Indenture Act of 1939 as so amended.

"Trustee". The term "Trustee" shall mean Wachovia Bank, National Association, its successors and any person resulting from or surviving any consolidation or merger to which it or its successors may be a party and any successor trustee at the time serving as successor trustee hereunder.

"U.S. Government Obligations". The term "U.S. Government Obligations" shall mean securities that are (i) direct obligations of the United States of America for the payment of which its full faith and credit is pledged or (ii) obligations of a person controlled or supervised by, and acting as an agency or instrumentality of, the United States of America the timely payment of which is unconditionally guaranteed as a full faith and credit obligation by the United States of America, which, in either case, are not callable or redeemable at the option of the issuer thereof, and shall also include a depository receipt issued by a bank (as defined in Section 3(a)(2) of the Securities Act) as custodian with respect to any such U.S. Government Obligation or a specific payment of principal or interest on any such U.S. Government Obligation held by such custodian for the account of the holder of such depository receipt; provided that (except as required by law) such custodian is not authorized to make any deduction from the amount payable to the holder of such depository receipt from any amount received by such custodian in respect of the U.S. Government Obligation or the specific payment of principal of or interest on the U.S. Government Obligation evidenced by such depository receipt.

"Voting Stock". The term "Voting Stock" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3.5(e) hereof.

Section 1.2 <u>Incorporation by Reference of Trust Indenture Act</u>.

Whenever this Indenture refers to a provision of the Trust Indenture Act, the provision is incorporated by reference in and made a part of this Indenture.

The following Trust Indenture Act terms used in this Indenture have the following meanings:

"Indenture Securities" means the Notes;

"Indenture Security Holder" means a holder of Notes;

"Indenture To Be Qualified" means this Indenture;

"Indenture Trustee" or "Institutional Trustee" means the Trustee;

"Obligor" on the Notes means the Company and any successor obligor under the Trust Indenture Act.

All other terms used in this Indenture that are defined by the Trust Indenture Act, defined by Trust Indenture Act reference to another statute or defined by Commission rule under the Trust Indenture Act have the meanings so assigned to them.

Section 1.3 Rules of Construction.

Unless the context otherwise requires:

- (1) a term has the meaning assigned to it;
- (2) an accounting term not otherwise defined has the meaning assigned to it in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
- (3) "or" is not exclusive;
- (4) words in the singular include the plural, and in the plural include the singular; and
- (5) provisions apply to successive events and transactions.

ARTICLE II

ISSUE, DESCRIPTION, EXECUTION, REGISTRATION AND EXCHANGE OF NOTES

Section 2.1 Designation, Amount and Issue of Notes.

The Notes shall be designated as "9.50% Senior Notes Due 2007." Notes not to exceed the aggregate principal amount of \$40,000,000 upon the execution of this Indenture, or from time to time thereafter, may be executed by the Company and delivered to the Trustee for authentication, and the Trustee shall thereupon authenticate and make available for delivery said Notes upon the written order of the Company, signed by its (a) Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Operating Officer or Chief Financial Officer, and (b) any Treasurer or Secretary or any Assistant Secretary, without any further action by the Company hereunder. The Global Note shall be exchangeable only as provided in Section 2.5.

Section 2.2 Form of Notes.

The Global Note shall represent all of the Outstanding Notes and shall not be exchangeable for definitive Notes except as herein expressly provided. Payment of principal of and interest and premium, if any, on the Global Note shall be made in accordance with the provisions of Section 2.3 hereof.

The terms and provisions contained in the form of Global Note attached as Exhibit A hereto shall constitute, and are hereby expressly made, a part of this Indenture and to the extent applicable, the Company and the Trustee, by their execution and delivery of this Indenture, expressly agree to such terms and provisions and to be bound thereby.

Section 2.3 Date and Denomination of Notes; Payments of Principal and Interest.

The Notes shall be issuable in registered form only without coupons in denominations of \$1,000 principal amount and integral multiples thereof. Every Note shall be dated the date of its authentication, shall be repaid in semiannual installments of interest, with the entire outstanding principal balance of the Notes together with all accrued but unpaid interest thereon due and payable in full on ________, 2007 (the "Maturity Date"). The Notes shall bear interest on the outstanding principal balance from the earlier of April 7, 2004 or the date of issue of the Notes, as provided in the Global Note. Interest shall be first payable on September 30, 2004, and then semiannually on each March 31 and September 30 (each a "Payment Date"), as specified on the face of the form of Global Note, attached as Exhibit A hereto.

The person in whose name any Note (or its Predecessor Note) is registered at the close of business on any record date with respect to any Payment Date (including any Note that is transferred or exchanged after the record date and on or before the Payment Date) shall be entitled to receive the interest payable on Payment Date and the principal payable on the Maturity Date notwithstanding the cancellation of such Note upon any transfer or exchange subsequent to the record date and prior to such Payment Date. Principal and interest may, at the option of the Company, be paid by check mailed to the address of such person as it appears on

the Note Register; provided that, with respect to any holder of Notes with an aggregate principal amount equal to or in excess of \$5,000,000, at the request (such request to include appropriate wire instructions) of such holder in writing to the Trustee on or before the record date preceding any Payment Date, principal and interest on such holder's Notes shall be paid by wire transfer in immediately available funds. The term "record date" with respect to any Payment Date (except as otherwise provided herein for Defaulted Interest) shall mean the 15th day of the month in which such Payment Date occurs.

None of the Company, the Trustee or any paying agent shall have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to or payment made on account of beneficial ownership interests in the Global Note or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interests.

Interest on the Notes shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day months.

Any interest on any Note that is payable, but is not punctually paid or duly provided for, on any said March 31, or September 30 (herein called "Defaulted Interest") shall forthwith cease to be payable to the Noteholder on the relevant record date by virtue of his having been such Noteholder; and such Defaulted Interest shall be paid by the Company, at its election in each case, as provided in clause (1) or (2) below:

(1) The Company may elect to make payment of any Defaulted Interest to the persons in whose names the Notes (or their respective Predecessor Notes) are registered at the close of business on a special record date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest, which shall be fixed in the following manner. The Company shall notify the Trustee in writing of the amount of Defaulted Interest to be paid on each Note and the date of the payment (which shall be not less than 25 days after the receipt by the Trustee of such notice, unless the Trustee shall consent to an earlier date), and at the same time, the Company shall deposit with the Trustee an amount of money equal to the aggregate amount to be paid in respect of such Defaulted Interest or shall make arrangements satisfactory to the Trustee for such deposit prior to the date of the proposed payment, such money when deposited to be held in trust for the benefit of the persons entitled to such Defaulted Interest as in this clause provided. Thereupon, the Trustee shall fix a special record date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest, which shall be not more than 15 days and not less than 10 days prior to the date of the payment and not less than 10 days after the receipt by the Trustee of the notice of the proposed payment. The Trustee shall promptly notify the Company of such special record date and, in the name and at the expense of the Company, shall cause notice of the payment of such Defaulted Interest and the special record date therefor to be mailed, first-class postage prepaid, to each Noteholder at his address as it appears in the Note Register, not less than 10 days prior to such special record date. Notice of the proposed payment of such Defaulted Interest and the special record date. Notice of the proposed payment of such Defaulted Interest and the special record date therefor having been so mailed, such Defaulted Interest shall be paid to the persons in whose names the Notes (or their respective Predecessor Notes) were registered at the close of busin

(2) The Company may make payment of any Defaulted Interest in any other lawful manner not inconsistent with the requirements of any securities exchange on which the Notes may be listed, and upon such notice as may be required by such exchange, if, after notice given by the Company to the Trustee of the proposed payment pursuant to this clause, such manner of payment shall be deemed practicable by the Trustee.

Section 2.4 Execution of Notes.

The Notes shall be signed in the name and on behalf of the Company by the signature of its Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Operating Officer or Chief Financial Officer and attested by the signature of its Treasurer, Secretary or any of its Assistant Secretaries (any of which signatures may be printed, engraved or otherwise reproduced thereon, by facsimile or otherwise). Only such Notes as shall bear thereon a certificate of authentication substantially in the form set forth on the form of Note attached as Exhibit A hereto, manually executed by the Trustee (or an authenticating agent appointed by the Trustee as provided by Section 13.11), shall be entitled to the benefits of this Indenture or be valid or obligatory for any purpose. Such certificate by the Trustee (or such an authenticating agent) upon any Note executed by the Company shall be conclusive evidence that the Note so authenticated has been duly authenticated and delivered hereunder and that the holder is entitled to the benefits of this Indenture.

In case any officer of the Company who shall have signed any of the Notes shall cease to be such officer before the Notes so signed shall have been authenticated and delivered by the Trustee, or disposed of by the Company, such Notes nevertheless may be authenticated and delivered or disposed of as though the person who signed such Notes had not ceased to be such officer of the Company; and any Note may be signed on behalf of the Company by such persons as, at the actual date of the execution of such Note, shall be the proper officers of the Company, although at the date of the execution of this Indenture any such person was not such an officer.

Section 2.5 Exchange and Transfer of Notes; Restrictions on Transfer; Depository.

Any exchange or transfer of all or a part of the Global Note for definitive Notes pursuant to this Section 2.5 must be accompanied by a supplemental indenture that shall include the form of such definitive Notes. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the Global Note may not be exchanged for definitive Notes.

(a) The Company shall cause to be kept at the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee a register (the register maintained in such office and in any other office or agency of the Company designated pursuant to Section 4.2 being herein sometimes collectively referred to as the "Note Register") in which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Company shall provide for the transfers of Notes. Such Note Register shall be in written form or in any form capable of being converted into written form within a reasonable period of time. The Trustee is hereby appointed "Note Registrar" for the purpose of transfers of Notes as herein provided. The Company may appoint one or more coregistrars. The Global Note shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co. Inc. as designee of the Depository unless exchanged as expressly provided for herein.

Subject to the first paragraph of Section 2.5:

upon surrender for registration of transfer of any Note to the Note Registrar or any co-registrar and satisfaction of the requirements for such transfer set forth in this Section 2.5, the Company shall execute, and the Trustee shall authenticate and make available for delivery, in the name of the designated transferee or transferees, one or more new Notes of any authorized denominations and of a like aggregate principal amount as may be required by Section 2.5(b).

notes may be exchanged for other Notes of any authorized denominations and of a like aggregate principal amount, upon surrender of the Notes to be exchanged at any such office or agency. Whenever any Notes are so surrendered for exchange, the Company shall execute, and the Trustee shall authenticate and make available for delivery, the Notes that the Noteholder making the exchange is entitled to receive bearing certificate numbers not contemporaneously outstanding.

all Notes presented or surrendered for registration of transfer or for exchange shall (if so required by the Company, the Trustee, the Note Registrar or any co-registrar) be duly endorsed, or be accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Company, executed by the Noteholder thereof or his attorney duly authorized in writing.

no service charge shall be charged to the Noteholder for any exchange or registration of transfer of Notes, but the Company may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax, assessments or other governmental charges that may be imposed in connection therewith.

none of the Company, the Trustee or the Depository, the Note Registrar or any co-registrar shall be required to exchange or register a transfer of (a) any Notes for a period of 15 days next preceding the mailing of a notice of redemption, (b) any Notes called for redemption or, if a portion of any Note is selected or called for redemption, such portion thereof selected or called for redemption, or (c) any Notes surrendered for repurchase pursuant to Section 3.4 or, if a portion of any Note is surrendered for repurchase pursuant to Section 3.4, such portion thereof surrendered for repurchase pursuant to Section 3.4.

all Notes issued upon any transfer or exchange of Notes shall be the valid obligations of the Company, evidencing the same debt and entitled to the same benefits under this Indenture as the Notes surrendered upon such registration of transfer or exchange. All Notes, the transfer and/or exchange of which is effectuated by the Trustee pursuant to this Section 2.5, shall be accompanied by an Officers' Certificate of the Company certifying that such transfer, exchange and/or registration is authorized by the Company and permitted hereunder.

any transfer of a definitive Note or Notes must be effected by the delivery to the transferee (or its nominee) of a definitive Note or Notes registered in the name of the

transfere (or its nominee) on the books maintained by the Trustee. With respect to any such transfer, the Company shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and make available for delivery to the transferee (or such transferee's nominee, as the case may be), a definitive Note or Notes in the appropriate aggregate principal amount in the name of such transferee (or its nominee) and bearing such restrictive legends as may be required by this Indenture.

(b) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Indenture (other than the provisions set forth in this Section 2.5(b)), the Global Note may not be transferred as a whole except by the Depository to a nominee of the Depository or by a nominee of the Depository or another nominee of the Depository or by the Depository or any such nominee to a successor Depository or a nominee of such successor Depository.

The Depository shall be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act. The Company initially appoints the Depository Trust Company to act as Depository with respect to the Global Note. The Global Note shall be issued to the Depository, registered in the name of Cede, as the nominee of the Depository, and shall not be exchanged or transferred except as expressly provided for herein and shall be deposited with the Trustee as Custodian for Cede.

Neither the Company nor the Trustee (or any registrar, paying agent or conversion agent under this Indenture) shall have responsibility for the performance by the Depository or its participants or indirect participants of its respective obligations under the rules and procedures governing its operations. The Depository will take any action permitted to be taken by a holder of Notes (including, without limitation, the presentation of Notes for exchange as described below) only at the direction of one or more participants to whose account with the Depository interests in the Global Note are credited, and only in respect of the principal amount of the Notes represented by the Global Note as to which such participants or participants has or have given such direction.

If at any time the Depository for the Global Note notifies the Company that it is unwilling or unable to continue as Depository for such Notes, the Company may appoint a successor Depository with respect to such Notes. If a successor Depository for the Notes is not appointed by the Company within 90 days after the Company receives such notice, the Company shall execute, and the Trustee, upon receipt of an Officers' Certificate for the authentication and delivery of Notes, shall authenticate and make available for delivery, Notes in definitive form, in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of the Global Note in exchange for the Global Note.

Definitive Notes issued in exchange for all or a part of the Global Note pursuant to this Section 2.5(b) shall be registered in such names and in such authorized denominations as the Depository, pursuant to instructions from its direct or indirect participants or otherwise, shall instruct the Trustee. Upon execution and authentication, the Trustee shall make available for delivery such definitive Notes to the persons in whose names such definitive Notes are so registered.

At such time as all interest in the principal, premium, if any, and interest of the Global Note has been paid, redeemed, repurchased or canceled, the Global Note shall be, upon receipt thereof, canceled by the Trustee in accordance with standing procedures and instructions existing between the Depository and the Custodian. At any time prior to such cancellation, if any interest in the principal, premium, if any, and interest of the Global Note is paid, exchanged for definitive Notes, redeemed, repurchased, converted, canceled or transferred to a transferree who receives definitive Notes therefor or any definitive Note is exchanged or transferred for part of the Global Note, the principal amount of the Global Note shall, in accordance with the standing procedures and instructions existing between the Depository and the Custodian, be reduced or increased, as the case may be, and an endorsement shall be made on the Global Note by the Trustee or the Custodian, at the direction of the Trustee, to reflect such reduction or increase.

The Company and the Trustee may for all purposes, including the making of payments due on the Notes, deal with the Depository as the authorized representative of the Noteholders for the purposes of exercising the rights of Noteholders hereunder. The rights of the owner of any beneficial interest in the Global Note shall be limited to those established by law and agreements between such owners and depository participants; provided that no such agreement shall give any rights to any person against the Company or the Trustee without the written consent of the parties so affected. Multiple requests or directions from and votes of the Depository, as holder of notes in book-entry form with respect to any particular matter, shall not be deemed inconsistent to the extent they do not represent an amount of notes in excess of those held in the name of the Depository or its nominee.

(c) Each holder or former holder of a Note agrees to indemnify the Company and the Trustee against any liability that may result from the transfer, exchange or assignment of such holder's or former holder's Note in violation of any provision of this Indenture and/or applicable U.S. federal or state securities law.

Section 2.6 Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost or Stolen Notes.

In case any Note shall become mutilated or be destroyed, lost or stolen, the Company in its discretion may execute, and upon its request, the Trustee or an authenticating agent appointed by the Trustee shall authenticate and make available for delivery a new Note bearing a number not contemporaneously outstanding in exchange and substitution for the mutilated Note or in lieu of and in substitution for the Note so destroyed, lost or stolen. The Company may charge such applicant for the expenses of the Company in replacing a Note. In every case the applicant for a substituted Note shall furnish to the Company, to the Trustee and, if applicable, to such authenticating agent such security or indemnity as may be required by them to save each of them harmless from any loss, liability, cost or expense caused by or connected with such substitution, and in every case of destruction, loss or theft, the applicant shall also furnish to the Company, to the Trustee and, if applicable, to such authenticating agent evidence to their satisfaction of the destruction, loss or theft of such Note and of the ownership thereof.

The Trustee or such authenticating agent may authenticate any such substituted Note and deliver the same upon the receipt of such security or indemnity as the Trustee, the Company and, if applicable, such authenticating agent may require. Upon the issuance of any substituted Note,

the Company may require the payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation thereto and any other expenses connected therewith. In case any Note that has matured or is about to mature or has been called for redemption or is about to be repurchased shall become mutilated or be destroyed, lost or stolen, the Company may, instead of issuing a substitute Note, pay or authorize the payment of the same (without surrender thereof, except in the case of a mutilated Note), as the case may be, if the applicant for such payment shall furnish to the Company, to the Trustee and, if applicable, to such authenticating agent such security or indemnity as may be required by them to save each of them harmless from any loss, liability, cost or expense caused by or connected with such payment, and in case of destruction, loss or theft, evidence satisfactory to the Company, the Trustee and, if applicable, any paying agent of the destruction, loss or theft of such Note and of the ownership thereof.

Every substitute Note issued pursuant to the provisions of this Section 2.6 in lieu of any Note that is destroyed, lost or stolen shall constitute an additional contractual obligation of the Company, whether or not the destroyed, lost or stolen Note shall be enforceable by anyone, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of (but shall be subject to all the limitations set forth in) this Indenture equally and proportionately with any and all other Notes duly issued hereunder. To the extent permitted by law, all Notes shall be held and owned upon the express condition that the foregoing provisions are exclusive with respect to the replacement or payment or conversion of mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Notes and shall preclude any and all other rights or remedies notwithstanding any law or statute existing or hereafter enacted to the contrary with respect to the replacement or payment or conversion of negotiable instruments or other securities without their surrender.

Section 2.7 Temporary Notes.

If definitive Notes are to be issued as provided herein, pending the preparation of such definitive Notes, the Company may execute and the Trustee or an authenticating agent appointed by the Trustee shall, upon written request of the Company, authenticate and make available for delivery temporary Notes (printed or lithographed). Temporary Notes shall be issuable in any authorized denomination and shall be substantially in the form of the definitive Notes but with such omissions, insertions and variations as may be appropriate for temporary Notes, all as may be determined by the Company. Every such temporary Note shall be executed by the Company and authenticated by the Trustee or such authenticating agent upon the same conditions and in substantially the same manner, and with the same effect, as the definitive Notes. Without unreasonable delay the Company shall execute and deliver to the Trustee or such authenticating agent definitive Notes (other than in the case of Notes in global form) and thereupon any or all temporary Notes (other than the Global Note) may be surrendered in exchange therefor, at each office or agency maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 4.2 and the Trustee or such authenticating agent shall authenticate and make available for delivery in exchange for such temporary Notes an equal aggregate principal amount of definitive Notes. Such exchange shall be made by the Company at its own expense and without any charge therefor. Until so exchanged, the temporary Notes shall in all respects be entitled to the same benefits and subject to the same limitations under this Indenture as definitive Notes authenticated and delivered hereunder.

Section 2.8 Cancellation of Notes Paid, Etc.

All Notes surrendered for the purpose of payment, redemption, repurchase, exchange or registration of transfer shall, if surrendered to the Company or any paying agent or any Note Registrar or any conversion agent, be surrendered to the Trustee and promptly canceled by it or, if surrendered to the Trustee, shall be promptly canceled by it and no Notes shall be issued in lieu thereof except as expressly permitted by any of the provisions of this Indenture. If required by the Company, the Trustee shall return canceled Notes to the Company. If the Company shall acquire any of the Notes, such acquisition shall not operate as a redemption or satisfaction of the indebtedness represented by such Notes unless and until the same are delivered to the Trustee for cancellation.

Section 2.9 Cusip Numbers.

The Company in issuing the Notes may use "CUSIP" numbers (if then generally in use), and, if so, the Trustee shall use CUSIP numbers in notices of redemption as a convenience to holders; provided that any such notice may state that no representation is made as to the correctness of such numbers either as printed on the Notes or as contained in any notice of a redemption and that reliance may be placed only on the other identification numbers printed on the Notes, and any such redemption shall not be affected by any defect in or omission of such numbers. The Company shall promptly notify the Trustee of any change in the CUSIP numbers.

Section 2.10 Ranking.

The Notes will be the Company's senior unsecured and unsubordinated obligation, will rank equally under the Company's other senior unsecured indebtedness, if any, and will be subordinated to the Company's secured debt, if any. While its obligations pursuant to the Notes are outstanding, the Trustee is authorized to take such actions as it deems necessary to subordinate the Company's obligations under the Notes to any future issuance of secured debt by the Company. While its obligations pursuant to the Notes are outstanding, the Company will not issue unsecured debt senior in ranking to the unsecured debt evidenced by the Notes.

ARTICLE III

REDEMPTION AND REPURCHASE OF NOTES

Section 3.1 Redemption Prices.

The Notes are redeemable by the Company at any time at the Company's option, upon notice as set forth in Section 3.2, in whole at any time or in part from time to time, at the redemption price of 100% of the principal amount of the Notes plus accrued and unpaid interest.

Section 3.2 Notice of Redemption; Selection of Notes.

In case the Company shall desire to exercise the right to redeem all or, as the case may be, any part of the Notes pursuant to Section 3.1, it shall fix a date for redemption and, in the case of any redemption pursuant to Section 3.1, it or, at its written request accompanied by the proposed form of notice of redemption (which must be received by the Trustee at least 45 days or, if the Note is issued solely as a Global Note, at least 20 days prior to the date fixed for redemption, unless a shorter period is agreed to by the Trustee or as otherwise required by the Depository), the Trustee in the name of and at the expense of the Company, shall mail or cause to be mailed a notice of such redemption at least 30 and not more than 60 days or, if the Note is issued solely as a Global Note, at least 10 and not more than 15 days or as otherwise required by the Depository or law, prior to the date fixed for redemption to the holders of Notes so to be redeemed as a whole or in part at their last addresses as the same appear on the Note Register, provided that subject to the approval of the form of notice by the Trustee if the Company shall give such notice, it shall also give such notice, and notice of the Notes to be redeemed, to the Trustee. Any such notice shall reflect that the Company has agreed to deposit with the Trustee on or prior to the date fixed for redemption an amount sufficient to redeem the principal amount of the Notes called for redemption and all interest accrued thereon up to the date fixed for redemption. Such mailing shall be by first class mail. The notice, if mailed in the manner herein provided, shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly given, whether or not the holder receives such notice. In any case, failure to give such notice by mail or any defect in the notice to the holder of any Note designated for redemption as a whole or in part shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of any other Note.

Each such notice of redemption shall identify the Notes to be redeemed (including CUSIP numbers), specify the aggregate principal amount of Notes to be redeemed, the date fixed for redemption, the redemption price at which Notes are to be redeemed, the place or places of payment, that payment shall be made upon presentation and surrender of such Notes, that interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption shall be paid as specified in said notice and that on and after said date, interest thereon or on the portion thereof to be redeemed shall cease to accrue. If fewer than all the Notes are to be redeemed, the notice of redemption shall identify the Notes to be redeemed. In case any Note is to be redeemed in part only, the notice of redemption shall state the portion of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed and shall state that on and after the date fixed for redemption, upon surrender of such Note, a new Note or Notes in principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion thereof shall be issued.

On or prior to the Business Day prior to the redemption date specified in the notice of redemption given as provided in this Section 3.2, the Company shall deposit by 11:00 A.M. Eastern Time with the Trustee or with one or more paying agents (or, if the Company is acting as its own paying agent, set aside, segregate and hold in trust as provided in Section 4.4) an amount of money sufficient to redeem on the redemption date all the Notes so called for redemption at the appropriate redemption price, together with accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption. If fewer than all the Notes are to be redeemed, the Company shall give the Trustee written notice in the form of an Officers' Certificate not fewer than 15 days (or such shorter period of time as may be acceptable to the Trustee) prior to the redemption date as to the aggregate principal amount of Notes to be redeemed.

If fewer than all the Notes are to be redeemed, the Trustee shall select the Notes or portions thereof to be redeemed (in principal amounts of \$1,000 or integral multiples thereof), by lot or, in its discretion, on a pro rata basis; provided, however, that as long as the Notes are issued in global form, such Notes shall be redeemed in accordance with the procedures established by the Depository. The Notes (or portions thereof) so selected shall be deemed duly selected for redemption for all purposes hereof.

Section 3.3 Payment of Notes Called for Redemption.

If notice of redemption has been given as above provided, the Notes or portion of Notes with respect to which such notice has been given shall become due and payable on the date and at the place or places stated in such notice at the applicable redemption price, together with interest thereon accrued to the date fixed for redemption subject to the provision in the last sentence of this paragraph, and on and after said date (unless the Company shall default in the payment of such Notes at the redemption price, together with interest thereon accrued to said date), interest on the Notes or portion of Notes so called for redemption shall cease to accrue, and, except as provided in Sections 7.6 and 11.3, to be entitled to any benefit or security under this Indenture, and the holders thereof shall have no right in respect of such Notes except the right to receive the redemption price thereof and unpaid interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption. On presentation and surrender of such Notes at a place of payment in said notice specified, the said Notes or the specified portions thereof shall be paid and redeemed by the Company at the applicable redemption price, together with interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption; provided that any semiannual payment of interest becoming due on the date fixed for redemption shall be payable to the holders of such Notes registered as such on the relevant record date subject to the terms and provisions of Section 2.3 hereof.

Upon presentation of any Note redeemed in part only, the Company shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and make available for delivery to the holder thereof, at the expense of the Company, a new Note or Notes, of authorized denominations, in principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the Notes so presented.

If any Note called for redemption shall not be so paid upon surrender thereof for redemption, such Note shall be deemed to remain Outstanding and the principal and premium, if any, shall, until paid or duly provided for, bear interest from the date fixed for redemption at the rate borne by the Note until the principal, interest and premium, if any, shall have been paid or duly provided for.

Section 3.4 Repurchase of Notes upon a Change of Control.

- (a) If a Change of Control shall occur at any time, then each holder of Notes shall have the right to require that the Company repurchase such holder's Notes in whole or in part in integral multiples of \$1,000 at a purchase price (the "Change of Control Purchase Price") in cash in an amount equal to 101% of the remaining outstanding principal balance of such Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon, if any, to the purchase date (the "Change of Control Purchase Date") pursuant to the offer described below (the "Change of Control Offer") and in accordance with the other procedures set forth in this Indenture.
- (b) Within 30 days following any Change of Control, the Company shall publish a notice in the Wall Street Journal, notify the Trustee thereof and give written notice of such Change of Control to each holder of Notes, by first-class mail, postage prepaid, at the Noteholder's address appearing in the Note Register, stating, among other things, (i) that a Change of Control has occurred, (ii) the Change of Control Purchase Price, (iii) the Change of Control Purchase Date (which shall be a Business Day no earlier than 30 days nor later than 60 days from the date such notice is mailed, or such later date as is necessary to comply with requirements under the Exchange Act), (iv) that any Note not tendered shall continue to accrue interest and to have all of the benefits of this Indenture, (v) that, unless the Company defaults in the payment of the Change of Control Purchase Price, any Notes accepted for payment pursuant to the Change of Control Offer shall cease to accrue interest after the Change of Control Purchase Date, (vi) that Noteholders electing to have any Notes purchased pursuant to a Change of Control Offer shall be required to surrender the Notes, with the form entitled "Option of Noteholder to Elect Purchase" on the reverse of the Notes completed, to the Company at the address specified in the notice prior to the close of business on the third Business Day preceding the Change of Control Purchase Date, (vii) that Noteholders shall be entitled to withdraw their election if the Company receives, not later than the close of business on the second Business Day preceding the Change of Control Purchase Date, a telegram, telex, facsimile transmission or letter setting forth the name of the Noteholder, the principal amount of Notes delivered for purchase, and a resulting that such Noteholder is withdrawing his election to have such Notes purchased, and (viii) that Noteholders whose Notes are being purchased only in part shall be issued new Notes equal in principal amount to the unpurchased portion of the Notes sur
- (c) On the Change of Control Purchase Date, the Company shall, to the extent lawful, (i) accept for payment Notes or portions thereof tendered pursuant to the Change of Control Offer, (ii) deposit with the Trustee in immediately available funds by 11:00 A.M. Eastern Time an amount equal to the Change of Control Purchase Price in respect of all Notes or portions thereof so tendered and (iii) deliver or cause to be delivered to the Trustee the Notes so accepted

together with an Officers' Certificate stating the Notes or portions thereof tendered to the Company. The Trustee shall promptly mail to each Noteholder of Notes so accepted payment in an amount equal to the purchase price of such Notes, and the Trustee shall promptly authenticate and mail to each Noteholder a new Note equal in principal amount to any unpurchased portion of the Notes surrendered, if any; provided that each such new Note shall be in a principal amount of \$1,000 or an integral multiple thereof. The Company shall publicly announce the results of the Change of Control Offer on or as soon as practicable after the Change of Control Payment Date.

- (d) The term "Change in Control" shall mean an event or series of events in which (i) any "person" or "group" (as such terms are used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act) acquires "beneficial ownership" (as determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the total Voting Stock of the Company whether by purchase tender, merger or otherwise; provided, however, that any such person or group shall not be deemed to be the beneficial owner of, or to beneficially own, any Voting Stock tendered in a tender offer until such tendered Voting Stock is accepted for purchase under the tender offer; or all or substantially all of the assets of the Company are sold, exchanged or otherwise is transferred to such person or group (other than any pledges or transfers made in connection with the securitization of the Company's assets.)
- (e) "Voting Stock" means stock of the class or classes pursuant to which the holders thereof have the general voting power under ordinary circumstances to elect at least a majority of the board of directors, managers or trustees of a corporation (irrespective whether or not at the time stock of any other class or classes shall have or might have voting power by reason of the happening of any contingency).

ARTICLE IV

PARTICULAR COVENANTS OF THE COMPANY

Section 4.1 Payment of Principal, Premium and Interest.

The Company covenants and agrees that it shall duly and punctually pay or cause to be paid the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on each of the Notes at the places, at the respective times and in the manner provided herein and in the Notes. Any amounts of cash to be given to the Trustee or paying agent shall be deposited with the Trustee or paying agent in immediately available funds by 11:00 A.M. Eastern Time. Each payment of interest on the Notes due on any semiannual Payment Date and the principal payable on the Maturity Date may be paid by mailing checks for the amounts payable to or upon the written order of the holders of Notes entitled thereto as they shall appear on the Note Register; provided that, with respect to any holder of Notes with an aggregate principal amount equal to or in excess of \$5,000,000, at the request (such request to include appropriate wire instructions) of such holder in writing to the Trustee, principal and interest on such holder's Notes shall be paid by wire transfer in immediately available funds. Payments of principal or interest shall be considered paid on the date due if the Trustee or paying agent (other than the Company, a Subsidiary of the Company or any Affiliate of any of them) holds on that date money designated for and sufficient to pay the principal or interest and is not prohibited from paying such money to the holders of the Notes pursuant to the terms of this Indenture.

Section 4.2 Maintenance of Office or Agency.

The Company shall maintain in Richmond, Virginia, an office or agency, which may be an office or agency of the Trustee where the Notes may be surrendered for registration of transfer or exchange or for presentation for payment or for redemption or repurchase and where notices and demands to or upon the Company in respect of the Notes and this Indenture may be served. The Company shall give prompt written notice to the Trustee of the location, and any change in the location, of such office or agency. If at any time the Company shall fail to maintain any such office or agency or shall fail to furnish the Trustee with the address thereof, such presentations, surrenders, notices and demands may be made or served at the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee.

The Company may also from time to time designate one or more other offices or agencies where the Notes may be presented or surrendered for any or all such purposes and may from time to time rescind such designations. The Company shall give prompt written notice to the Trustee of any such designation or rescission and of any change in the location of any such other office or agency.

The Company hereby initially designates the Trustee as paying agent and Note Registrar and hereby initially designates the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee, as the office or agency of the Company for the purposes set forth in the first paragraph of this Section 4.2.

So long as the Trustee is the Note Registrar, the Trustee agrees to mail, or cause to be mailed, the notices set forth in Section 7.11(a).

Section 4.3 Appointments to Fill Vacancies in Trustee's Office.

The Company, whenever necessary to avoid or fill a vacancy in the office of Trustee, shall appoint, in the manner provided in Section 7.11, a successor trustee, so that there shall at all times be a Trustee hereunder.

Section 4.4 Provisions as to Paying Agent.

- (a) If the Company shall appoint a paying agent other than the Trustee, or if the Trustee shall appoint such a paying agent, the Company or the Trustee, as the case may be, shall cause such paying agent to execute and deliver to the Trustee an instrument in which such agent shall agree with the Trustee, subject to the provisions of this Section 4.4:
- (1) that it shall hold all sums held by it as such agent for the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Notes (whether such sums have been paid to it by the Company or by any other Obligor on the Notes) in trust for the benefit of the holders of the Notes;

- (2) that it shall give the Trustee written notice of any failure by the Company (or by any other Obligor on the Notes) to make any payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Notes when the same shall be due and payable; and
 - (3) that at any time during the continuance of an Event of Default, upon request of the Trustee, it shall forthwith pay to the Trustee all sums so held in trust.

The Company shall, before each due date of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Notes, deposit with the paying agent a sum sufficient to pay such principal, premium, if any, or interest, and (unless such paying agent is the Trustee) the Company shall promptly notify the Trustee of any failure to take such action.

- (b) If the Company shall act as its own paying agent, it shall, on or before each due date of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Notes, set aside, segregate and hold in trust for the benefit of the holders of the Notes a sum sufficient to pay such principal, premium, if any, or interest so becoming due and shall notify the Trustee of any failure to take such action and of any failure by the Company (or any other Obligor on the Notes) to make any payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Notes when the same shall become due and payable.
- (c) Anything in this Section 4.4 to the contrary notwithstanding, the Company may, at any time, for the purpose of obtaining a satisfaction and discharge of this Indenture, or for any other reason, pay or cause to be paid to the Trustee all sums held in trust by the Company or any paying agent hereunder as required by this Section 4.4, such sums to be held by the Trustee upon the trusts herein contained and upon such payment by the Company or any paying agent to the Trustee, the Company or such paying agent shall be released from all further liability with respect to such sums.
 - (d) Anything in this Section 4.4 to the contrary notwithstanding, the agreement to hold sums in trust as provided in this Section 4.4 is subject to Sections 11.3 and 11.4.

Section 4.5 Corporate Existence.

Subject to Article X, the Company shall do or cause to be done all things necessary to preserve and keep in full force and effect (i) its corporate existence, and the corporate, partnership or other existence of any Subsidiary of the Company, in accordance with the respective organizational documents (as the same may be amended from time to time) of the Company or any such Subsidiary and (ii) the rights (charter and statutory), licenses and franchises of the Company and its Subsidiaries; provided that the Company shall not be required to preserve any such right, license or franchise, or the corporate, partnership or other existence of any of its Subsidiaries if the Board of Directors shall determine that the preservation thereof is no longer desirable in the conduct of the business of the Company and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, and that the loss thereof is not materially adverse to the holders of the Notes.

Section 4.6 Stay, Extension and Usury Laws.

The Company covenants (to the extent that it may lawfully do so) that it shall not at any time insist upon, plead or in any manner whatsoever claim or take the benefit or advantage of, any stay, extension or usury law or other law that would prohibit or forgive the Company from paying all or any portion of the principal of or interest on the Notes as contemplated herein, wherever enacted, now or at any time hereafter in force, or that may affect the covenants or the performance of this Indenture; and the Company (to the extent it may lawfully do so) hereby expressly waives all benefit or advantage of any such law, and covenants that it shall not, by resort to any such law, hinder, delay or impede the execution of any power herein granted to the Trustee, but shall suffer and permit the execution of every such power as though no such law has been enacted.

Section 4.7 Compliance Statement; Notice of Defaults.

- (a) The Company shall deliver to the Trustee within 120 days after the end of each fiscal year of the Company an Officers' Certificate stating whether or not, to the best knowledge of the signers thereof, the Company is in compliance (without regard to periods of grace or notice requirements) with all conditions and covenants under this Indenture, and if the Company shall not be in compliance, specifying such non-compliance and the nature and status thereof of which such signer may have knowledge.
- (b) The Company shall file with the Trustee written notice of the occurrence of any Default or Event of Default within ten days of its becoming aware of any such Default or Event of Default.

Section 4.8 Limitation on Dividend and Other Payment Restrictions Affecting Subsidiaries.

The Company shall not, and shall not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, directly or indirectly, create or otherwise cause or suffer to exist or become effective any consensual encumbrance or restriction on the ability of any Subsidiary to (i) pay dividends or make any other distribution on its Capital Stock or with respect to any other interest or participation in, or measured by, its profits, or pay any indebtedness owed to, the Company or a Subsidiary of the Company, (ii) make loans or advances to the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company, or (iii) transfer any of its properties or assets to the Company other than any Subsidiary other than in each case any encumbrance or restriction relating to the securitization of the assets of the Company or Subsidiary consistent with past practice.

Section 4.9 Taxes

The Company shall pay or discharge or cause to be paid or discharged, before the same shall become delinquent, (i) all taxes, assessments and governmental charges (including withholding taxes and any penalties, interest and additions to taxes) levied or imposed upon the Company or its Subsidiaries or upon the income, profits or property of the Company or any such Subsidiary and (ii) all lawful claims for labor, materials and supplies that, if unpaid, might by

law become a lien upon the property of the Company or any such Subsidiary; provided that the Company shall not be required to pay or discharge or cause to be paid or discharged any such tax, assessment, charge or claim whose amount, applicability or validity is being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings and for which disputed amounts adequate reserves have been made.

Section 4.10 Insurance.

The Company shall provide, or cause to be provided, for itself and its Subsidiaries, insurance (including appropriate self-insurance) against loss or damage of the kinds customarily insured against by corporations similarly situated and owning like properties, including, but not limited to, products liability insurance and public liability insurance, with reputable insurers or with the government of the United States of America or an agency or instrumentality thereof, in such amounts with such deductibles and by such methods as shall be determined in good faith by the Board of Directors to be appropriate.

Section 4.11 Limitation on Restricted Payments.

The Company shall not, and shall not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, directly or indirectly, make any Restricted Payment, unless no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing at the time of or after giving effect to such Restricted Payment. The provisions of this covenant shall not prohibit any distribution by the Company which is necessary to maintain the Company's status as a real estate investment trust under the Code.

Section 4.12 Limitations on Transactions with Affiliates.

The Company shall not, and shall not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, conduct any business or enter into any transactions or series of transactions with or for the benefit of any of its Affiliates (each, an "Affiliate Transaction"), except in good faith and on terms that are, in the aggregate, no less favorable to the Company or such Subsidiary, as the case may be, than those that could have been obtained in a comparable transaction on an arm's-length basis from a Person who is not such an Affiliate. All Affiliate Transactions (and each series of related Affiliate Transactions which are a part of a common plan) involving aggregate payments or other market value in excess of \$6,000,000 shall be approved unanimously by the Board of Directors of the Company, such approval to be evidenced by a board resolution stating that such directors have, in good faith, determined that such transactions or related transactions comply with the foregoing provision; and if the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company enters into an Affiliate Transaction (or a series of related Affiliate Transactions which are part of a common plan) involving aggregate payments or market value in excess of \$10,000,000 the Company or such Subsidiary shall, prior to the consummation thereof, obtain a favorable opinion as to the fairness of such transaction related transactions from an independent financial advisor and file the same with the Trustee; provided that this sentence shall not be applicable with respect to sales or purchases of products or services by the Company or from its Affiliates in the ordinary course of business on terms similar to those that could have been obtained in a comparable transaction on an arms-length basis from a Person who is not such an Affiliate. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the restrictions set forth in this covenant shall not apply to (i) customary directors' fees and (ii) customary fees or transactions by and among the Company and its wholly owned Subsidiaries.

ARTICLE V

NOTEHOLDERS' LISTS AND REPORTS BY THE COMPANY

Section 5.1 Noteholders' Lists.

The Company shall furnish to the Trustee at least seven Business Days preceding each interest payment date, and at such other times as the Trustee may request in writing, a list in such form and as of such date as the Trustee reasonably may require of the names and addresses of holders of Notes, and the Company shall otherwise comply with Trust Indenture Act Section 312(a). The Trustee shall preserve, in as current a form as is reasonably practicable, the most recent list available to it of the names and addresses of holders of Notes, and the Trustee shall otherwise comply with Trust Indenture Act Section 312(a).

Section 5.2 Reports by Company.

The Company shall deliver to the Trustee within 15 days after it files the same with the Commission, copies of all reports and information (or copies of such portions of any of the foregoing as the Commission may by its rules and regulations prescribe), if any, which the Company is required to file with the Commission pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act or pursuant to the immediately following sentence. So long as the Notes remain listed on the New York Stock Exchange, the Company shall file with the Commission such reports as may be required pursuant to Section 13 of the Exchange Act in respect of a security registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act, regardless of whether the Company is otherwise required to file such reports. If the Company is not subject to the reporting requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act (or otherwise required to file reports pursuant to the immediately preceding sentence) and so long as at least Three Million Dollars (\$3,000,000) in aggregate principal amount of Notes remain Outstanding, the Company shall deliver to the Trustee, within 15 days after it would have been required to file such information with the Commission were it required to do established national reputation), and a "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," in each case substantially equivalent to that which it would have been required to include in such quarterly or annual reports, information, documents or other reports if it had been subject to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act. The Company shall also comply with the other provisions of the Trust Indenture Act once this Indenture has been qualified. The Company shall also comply with the other provisions of the Trust Indenture Act Section 314(a).

Delivery of such reports, information and documents to the Trustee is for informational purposes only and the Trustee's receipt of such shall not constitute constructive notice of any

information contained therein or determinable from information contained therein, including the Company's compliance with any of its covenants hereunder (as to which the Trustee is entitled to rely exclusively on Officers' Certificates).

ARTICLE VI DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES

Section 6.1 Events of Default.

In case one or more of the following Events of Default (whatever the reason for such Event of Default and whether it shall be voluntary or involuntary or be effected by operation of law or pursuant to any judgment, decree or order of any court or any order, rule or regulation of any administrative or governmental body) shall have occurred and be continuing:

- (a) default in the payment of the principal of or premium, if any, on the Notes when due at maturity, upon a payment date or upon redemption or otherwise, including failure by the Company to purchase the Notes when required under Section 3.4; or
- (b) default in the payment of any installment of interest on the Notes as and when the same shall become due and payable and continuance of such default for a period of 30 days; or
- (c) a failure on the part of the Company to duly observe or perform any other covenants or agreements on the part of the Company in this Indenture (other than a default in the performance or breach of a covenant or agreement that is specifically dealt with elsewhere in this Section 6.1) that continues for a period of 90 days after the date on which written notice of such failure, requiring the Company to remedy the same, shall have been given to the Company by the Trustee, or to the Company and a Responsible Officer of the Trustee, by the holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Notes at the time Outstanding determined in accordance with Section 8.4; or
- (d) an event of default occurs under any mortgage, indenture or instrument under which there may be issued or by which there may be secured or evidenced any indebtedness for money borrowed by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries (or the payment of which is guaranteed by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries), other than any non-recourse indebtedness, whether such indebtedness or guarantee now exists or shall be created after the date hereof, which default (i) is caused by a failure to pay principal or interest on such indebtedness prior to the expiration of the grace period provided in such indebtedness (a "Payment Default") or (ii) results in the acceleration of such indebtedness prior to its expressed maturity and, in each case, the principal amount of such indebtedness, together with the principal amount of any other such indebtedness under which there has been a Payment Default or the maturity of which has been so accelerated, aggregates \$25,000,000 or more;
- (e) final judgments or decrees shall be entered by a court of competent jurisdiction against the Company or any Subsidiary involving liabilities of \$40,000,000 or more (singly or in the aggregate) (after deducting the portion of such liabilities accepted by a reputable insurance company) and such final judgments or decrees shall not have been vacated, discharged, satisfied or stayed pending appeal within 60 days from the entry thereof;

(f) the Company shall commence a voluntary case or other proceeding seeking liquidation, reorganization or other relief with respect to itself or its debts under any bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law now or hereafter in effect, or seeking the appointment of a trustee, receiver, liquidator, custodian or other similar official of it or any substantial part of its property, or shall consent to any such relief or to the appointment of or taking possession by any such official in an involuntary case or other proceeding commenced against it or shall make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or shall fail generally to pay its debts as they become due; or

(g) an involuntary case or other proceeding shall be commenced against the Company seeking liquidation, reorganization or other relief with respect to it or its debts under any bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law now or hereafter in effect or seeking the appointment of a trustee, receiver, liquidator, custodian or other similar official of it or any substantial part of its property, and such involuntary case or other proceeding shall remain undismissed and unstayed for a period of 60 consecutive days;

then, and in each and every such case (other than an Event of Default specified in Section 6.1(f) or (g)), unless the principal of all of the Notes shall have already become due and payable, either the Trustee or the holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Notes then Outstanding hereunder determined in accordance with Section 8.4, by notice in writing to the Company (and to the Trustee if given by Noteholders), may declare the principal of, premium, if any, on the Notes and the interest accrued thereon to be due and payable immediately, and upon any such declaration the same shall become and shall be immediately due and payable, anything in this Indenture or in the Notes contained to the contrary notwithstanding. If an Event of Default specified in Section 6.1(f) or (g) occurs and is continuing, the principal of all the Notes and the interest accrued thereon shall be immediately due and payable. The foregoing provision is subject to the conditions that if, at any time after the principal of the Notes shall have been so declared due and payable, and before any judgment or decree for the payment of the monies due shall have been obtained or entered as hereinafter provided, the Company shall pay or shall deposit with the Trustee a sum sufficient to pay all matured installments of interest upon all Notes and the principal of and premium, if any, on any and all Notes that shall have become due otherwise than by acceleration (with interest on overdue installments of interest (to the extent that payment of such interest is enforceable under applicable law) and on such principal and premium, if any, at the rate borne by the Notes, to the date of such payment or deposit) and amounts due to the Trustee pursuant to Section 6.7, then and in every such case the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Notes then Outstanding, by written notice to the Company and to the Trustee, may waive all Defaults or Events of Default and rescind and annul such declaration and its consequences;

In case the Trustee shall have proceeded to enforce any right under this Indenture and such proceedings shall have been discontinued or abandoned because of such waiver or rescission and annulment or for any other reason or shall have been determined adversely to the Trustee, then and in every such case the Company, the holders of Notes and the Trustee shall be restored respectively to their several positions and rights hereunder, and all rights, remedies and powers of the Company, the holders of Notes and the Trustee shall continue as though no such proceeding had been taken.

Section 6.2 Payments of Notes on Default; Suit Therefor.

The Company covenants that (a) in case a default shall be made in the payment of any installment of interest upon any of the Notes as and when the same shall become due and payable, and such default shall have continued for a period of 30 days, or (b) in case default shall be made in the payment of the principal of or premium, if any, on any of the Notes as and when the same shall have become due and payable, whether upon a Payment Date, at maturity of the Notes or in connection with any redemption or repurchase, by declaration or otherwise, then, upon demand of the Trustee, the Company shall pay to the Trustee, for the benefit of the holders of the Notes, the whole amount that then shall have become due and payable on all such Notes for principal of, premium, if any, or interest, or both, as the case may be, with interest upon the overdue principal, premium, if any, and (to the extent that payment of such interest is enforceable under applicable law) upon the overdue installments of interest at the rate borne by the Notes; and, in addition thereto, such further amount as shall be sufficient to cover the costs and expenses of collection, including reasonable compensation to the Trustee, its agents, attorneys and counsel, and any expenses or liabilities incurred by the Trustee hereunder other than through its negligence or willful misconduct. Until such demand by the Trustee, the Company may pay the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Notes to the registered holders, whether or not the Notes are overdue.

In case the Company shall fail forthwith to pay such amounts upon such demand, the Trustee, in its own name and as trustee of an express trust, shall be entitled and empowered to institute any actions or proceedings at law or in equity for the collection of the sums so due and unpaid and may prosecute any such action or proceeding to judgment or final decree, and may enforce any such judgment or final decree against the Company or any other Obligor on the Notes and collect in the manner provided by law out of the property of the Company or any other Obligor on the Notes wherever situated the monies adjudged or decreed to be payable.

In case there shall be pending proceedings for the bankruptcy or for the reorganization of the Company or any other Obligor on the Notes under Title 11 of the United States Code or any other applicable law, or in case a receiver, assignee or trustee in bankruptcy or reorganization, liquidator, sequestrator or similar official shall have been appointed for or taken possession of the Company or such other obligor, the property of the Company or such other obligor, or in the case of any other judicial proceedings relative to the Company or such other Obligor on the Notes, or to the creditors or property of the Company or such other obligor, the Trustee,

irrespective of whether the principal of the Notes shall then be due and payable as therein expressed or by declaration or otherwise and irrespective of whether the Trustee shall have made any demand pursuant to the provisions of this Section 6.2, shall be entitled and empowered, by intervention in such proceedings or otherwise, subject to the rights of the Trustee under Section 7.3 and 7.7 hereof, to file and prove a claim or claims for the whole amount of principal, premium, if any, and interest owing and unpaid in respect of the Notes and, in case of any judicial proceedings, to file such proofs of claim and other papers or documents as may be necessary or advisable in order to have the claims of the Trustee and of the Noteholders allowed in such judicial proceedings relative to the Company or any other Obligor on the Notes, its or their creditors, or its or their property and to collect and receive any monies or other property payable or deliverable on any such claims and to distribute the same after the deduction of any amounts due the Trustee under Section 7.7; and any receiver, assignee or trustee in bankruptcy or reorganization, liquidator, custodian or similar official is hereby authorized by each of the Noteholders to make such payments to the Trustee and, in the event that the Trustee shall consent to the making of such payments directly to the Noteholders, to pay to the Trustee any amount due it for reasonable compensation, expenses, advances and disbursements, including counsel fees incurred by it up to the date of such distribution. To the extent that such payment of reasonable compensation, expenses, advances and disbursements out of the estate in any such proceedings shall be denied for any reason, payment of the same shall be secured by a lien on, and shall be paid out of, any and all distributions, dividends, monies, securities and other property that the holders of the Notes may be entitled to receive in such proceedings, whether in liquidation or under any plan of reorganization or arrangeme

Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to authorize the Trustee to authorize or consent to or adopt on behalf of any Noteholder any plan of reorganization or arrangement affecting the Notes or the rights of any Noteholder, or to authorize the Trustee to vote in respect of the claim of any Noteholder in any such proceeding.

All rights of action and of asserting claims under this Indenture, or under any of the Notes, may be enforced by the Trustee without the possession of any of the Notes or the production thereof on any trial or other proceeding relative thereto, and any such suit or proceeding instituted by the Trustee shall be brought in its own name as trustee of an express trust, and any recovery of judgment shall, after provision for the payment of the reasonable compensation, expenses, disbursements and advances of the Trustee, its agents and counsel, be for the ratable benefit of the holders of the Notes.

In any proceedings brought by the Trustee pursuant to this Indenture or any supplement hereto (and in any proceedings involving the interpretation of any provision of this Indenture to which the Trustee shall be a party), the Trustee shall be held to represent all the holders of the Notes, and it shall not be necessary to make any holders of the Notes parties to any such proceedings.

Section 6.3 Application of Monies Collected by Trustee.

Any monies collected by the Trustee pursuant to this Article VI shall be applied in the order following, at the date or dates fixed by the Trustee for the distribution of such monies, upon presentation of the several Notes and stamping thereon the payment, if only partially paid, and upon surrender thereof, if fully paid:

First: To the payment of all amounts due the Trustee under Section 7.7;

Second: In case the principal of the Outstanding Notes shall not have become due and be unpaid, to the payment of interest on the Notes in default in the order of the maturity of the installments of such interest, with interest (to the extent that such interest has been collected by the Trustee) upon the overdue installments of interest at the rate borne by the Notes, such payments to be made ratably to the persons entitled thereto; and

Third: In case the principal of the Outstanding Notes shall have become due, by declaration or otherwise, and be unpaid, to the payment of the whole amount then due and unpaid upon the Notes for principal, premium, if any, and interest, with interest on the overdue principal and premium, if any, and (to the extent that such interest has been collected by the Trustee) upon overdue installments of interest at the rate borne by the Notes; and in case such monies shall be insufficient to pay in full the whole amounts so due and unpaid upon the Notes, then to the payment of such principal, premium, if any, and interest without preference or priority of principal and premium, if any, over interest, or of interest over principal and premium, if any, or of any installment of interest over any other Note, ratably to the aggregate of such principal and premium, if any, and accrued and unpaid interest.

Section 6.4 Proceedings by Noteholder.

No holder of any Note shall have any right by virtue of or by availing of any provision of this Indenture to institute any suit, action or proceeding in equity or at law upon or under or with respect to this Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver, trustee, liquidator, custodian or other similar official, or for any other remedy hereunder, unless such holder previously shall have given to the Trustee written notice of an Event of Default and of the continuance thereof, as hereinbefore provided, and unless also the holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Notes then Outstanding shall have made written request upon the Trustee to institute such action, suit or proceeding in its own name as Trustee hereunder and shall have offered to the Trustee such reasonable indemnity as it may require against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred therein or thereby, and the Trustee for 60 days after its receipt of such notice, request and offer of indemnity, shall have neglected or refused to institute any such action, suit or proceeding, and no direction inconsistent with such written request shall have been given to the Trustee pursuant to Section 6.7; it being understood and intended, and being expressly covenanted by the taker and holder of every Note with every other taker and holder and the Trustee, that no one or more holders of Notes shall have any right in any manner whatever by virtue of or by availing of any provision of this Indenture to affect, disturb or prejudice the rights of any other holder of Notes, to obtain or seek to obtain priority over or preference to any other such holder or to enforce any right under this Indenture, except in the manner herein provided and for the equal, ratable and common benefit of all holders of Notes (except as otherwise provided herein). For the protection and enforcement of this Section 6.4, each and every Noteholder and the Trustee shall be entitled to such relief as can be given either at law or in equity.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Indenture and any provision of any Note, the right of any holder of any Note to receive payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such Note, on or after the respective due dates expressed in such Note, or to institute suit for the enforcement of any such payment on or after such respective dates against the Company shall not be impaired or affected without the consent of such holder except as otherwise set forth herein.

Section 6.5 Proceedings by Trustee.

In case of an Event of Default and subject to the provisions of Section 7.7 hereof, the Trustee may in its discretion proceed to protect and enforce the rights vested in it by this Indenture by such appropriate judicial proceedings as the Trustee shall deem most effectual to protect and enforce any of such rights, either by suit in equity or by action at law or by proceeding in bankruptcy or otherwise, whether for the specific enforcement of any covenant or agreement contained in this Indenture or in aid of the exercise of any power granted in this Indenture or to enforce any other legal or equitable right vested in the Trustee by this Indenture or by law.

Section 6.6 Remedies Cumulative and Continuing.

Except as provided in Section 2.6, all powers and remedies given by this Article VI to the Trustee or to the Noteholders shall, to the extent permitted by law, be deemed cumulative and not exclusive of such powers and remedies or of any other powers and remedies available to the Trustee or the holders of the Notes, by judicial proceedings or otherwise, to enforce the performance or observance of the covenants and agreements contained in this Indenture, and no delay or omission of the Trustee or of any holder of any of the Notes to exercise any right or power accruing upon any Default or Event of Default occurring and continuing as aforesaid shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such Default or Event of Default or any acquiescence therein; and, subject to the provisions of Section 6.4, every power and remedy given by this Article VI or by law to the Trustee or to the Noteholders may be exercised from time to time, and as often as shall be deemed expedient, by the Trustee or by the Noteholders.

Section 6.7 <u>Direction of Proceedings and Waiver of Defaults by Majority of Noteholders.</u>

The holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Notes at the time Outstanding (determined in accordance with Section 8.4) shall have the right to direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee or exercising any trust or power conferred on the Trustee; provided that (a) such direction shall not be in conflict with any rule of law or with this Indenture and (b) the Trustee may take any other action deemed proper by the Trustee that is not inconsistent with such direction. The holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Notes at the time Outstanding (determined in accordance with Section 8.4) may on behalf of the holders of all of the Notes waive any past

Default or Event of Default and its consequences except (i) a default in the payment of interest or premium, if any, on, or the principal of, the Notes or (ii) a default in respect of a covenant or provisions hereof that under Article IX cannot be modified or amended without the consent of the holders of all Notes then Outstanding. Whenever any Default or Event of Default shall have been waived as permitted by this Section 6.7, said Default or Event of Default shall for all purposes of the Notes and this Indenture be deemed to have been cured and to be not continuing and the Company, the Trustee and the holders of the Notes shall as reasonably possible be restored to their former positions and rights hereunder; but no such waiver shall extend to any subsequent or other Default or Event of Default or impair any right consequent thereon.

Section 6.8 Notice of Defaults

The Trustee shall, within 90 days after the occurrence of a Default (or, if later, within 15 days after such Default is first known to the Trustee), mail to all Noteholders, as the names and addresses of such holders appear upon the Note Register, notice of such Default, unless such Default shall have been cured or waived before the giving of such notice; provided that, except in the case of default in the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on any of the Notes, the Trustee shall be protected in withholding such notice if and so long as a Responsible Officer of the Trustee in good faith determines that the withholding of such notice is in the interests of the Noteholders.

Section 6.9 <u>Undertaking to Pay Costs</u>.

All parties to this Indenture agree, and each holder of any Note by his acceptance thereof shall be deemed to have agreed, that any court may, in its discretion, require, in any suit for the enforcement of any right or remedy under this Indenture, or in any suit against the Trustee for any action taken or omitted by it as Trustee, the filing by any party litigant in such suit of an undertaking to pay the costs of such suit and that such court may in its discretion assess reasonable costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses, against any party litigant in such suit, having due regard to the merits and good faith of the claims or defenses made by such party litigant; provided that the provisions of this Section 6.9 shall not apply to any suit instituted by the Trustee, to any suit instituted by any Noteholder or group of Noteholders holding in the aggregate more than 10% in principal amount of the Indenture Securities Outstanding, or to any suit instituted by any Noteholder for the enforcement of the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on any Note on or after the due date expressed in such Note.

ARTICLE VII CONCERNING THE TRUSTEE

Section 7.1 Duties and Responsibilities of Trustee.

(a) If an Event of Default known to the Trustee has occurred and is continuing, the Trustee shall exercise the rights and powers vested in it by this Indenture and use the same degree of care and skill in their exercise as a prudent person would exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of such person's own affairs.

- (b) Except during the continuance of an Event of Default known to the Trustee:
 - (i) the Trustee need perform only those duties that are specifically set forth in this Indenture and no others; and
- (ii) in the absence of bad faith on its part, the Trustee may conclusively rely, as to the truth of the statements and the correctness of the opinions expressed therein, upon certificates or opinions furnished to the Trustee and conforming to the requirements of this Indenture; provided that in the case of any such certificates or opinions that by any provision hereof are specifically required to be furnished to the Trustee, the Trustee shall be under a duty to examine the same to determine whether or not they conform to the requirements of this Indenture (but need not confirm or investigate the accuracy of mathematical calculations or other facts stated therein).
 - (c) The Trustee may not be relieved from liability for its own negligent action, its own negligent failure to act or its own willful misconduct, except that:
 - (i) this paragraph (c) does not limit the effect of paragraph (b) of this Section 7.1;
- (ii) the Trustee shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith by a Responsible Officer of the Trustee unless it is proved that the Trustee was negligent in ascertaining the pertinent facts reasonably available to the Trustee; and
- (iii) the Trustee shall not be liable with respect to any action it takes or omits to take in good faith in accordance with a direction received by it pursuant to Section 6.7.
 - (d) Every provision of this Indenture that in any way relates to the Trustee is subject to paragraphs (a), (b), (c) and (e) of this Section 7.1.
- (e) The Trustee may refuse to perform any duty or exercise any right or power or extend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur any financial liability unless it receives indemnity satisfactory to it against any loss, liability or expense.

Section 7.2 Reports by Trustee to Holders.

Within 60 days after each April 1 commencing with the April 1 following the date of this Indenture, the Trustee shall, if required by the Trust Indenture Act, mail to each Noteholder a brief report dated as of such April 1 that complies with Trust Indenture Act Section 313(a). The Trustee also shall comply with Trust Indenture Act Sections 313(b) and 313(c).

The Company shall promptly notify the Trustee in writing if the Notes become listed or delisted on any stock exchange or automatic quotation system.

A copy of each report at the time of its mailing to Noteholders shall be mailed to the Company and, to the extent required by Section 5.2 hereof and of the Trust Indenture Act Section 313(d), filed with the Commission and each stock exchange, if any, on which the Notes are listed.

Section 7.3 Reliance on Documents, Opinions, etc.

Except as otherwise provided in Section 7.1:

- (a) The Trustee may rely and shall be protected in acting or refraining from acting upon any resolution, certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, consent, order, bond, debenture, coupon or other paper or document believed by it in good faith to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the proper party or parties;
- (b) Any request, direction, order or demand of the Company mentioned herein shall be sufficiently evidenced by an Officers' Certificate (unless other evidence in respect thereof be herein specifically prescribed or required by the Trust Indenture Act); and any resolution of the Board of Directors shall be sufficiently evidenced by a copy thereof certified by the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the Company;
- (c) The Trustee may consult with counsel of its selection and any advice or opinion of counsel shall be full and complete authorization and protection in respect of any action taken or omitted by it hereunder in good faith and in accordance with such advice or opinion of counsel;
- (d) The Trustee shall not be bound to make any investigation into the facts or matters stated in any resolution, certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, consent, order, bond, debenture, coupon or other paper or document, but the Trustee, in its discretion, may make such further inquiry or investigation into such facts or matters as it may see fit, and, if the Trustee shall determine to make such further inquiry or investigation, it shall be entitled to examine, upon reasonable notice to the Company and during ordinary business hours of the Company, the books, records and premises of the Company, personally or by agent or attorney at the sole cost of the Company and shall incur no liability or additional liability of any kind by reason of such inquiry of investigation;
- (e) The Trustee may execute any of the trusts or powers hereunder or perform any duties hereunder either directly or by or through agents or attorneys, and the Trustee shall not be responsible for any misconduct or negligence on the part of any agent or attorney appointed by it with due care hereunder; no Depository, Custodian or paying agent who is not the Trustee shall be deemed an agent of the Trustee, and the Trustee (in its capacity as Trustee) shall not be responsible for any act or omission by any such Depository, Custodian or paying agent;
- (f) The Trustee shall be under no obligation to exercise any of the rights or powers vested in it by this Indenture at the request or direction of any of the holders pursuant to this Indenture unless such holders have offered the Trustee reasonable security or indemnity against the costs, expenses and liabilities that would be incurred by it in compliance with such request or direction.
- (g) The Trustee shall not be required to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur any financial liability in the performance of its duties or in the exercise of its rights and powers hereunder if is shall have reasonable grounds for believing that the repayment of such funds or adequate indemnity against such risk or liability is not reasonably assured;
 - (h) The Trustee shall not be liable for any action it takes or omits to take in good faith that it believes to be authorized or within its rights or powers;
- (i) In connection with any request to transfer or exchange any Note, the Trustee may request a direction (in the form of an Officers' Certificate) from the Company and an Opinion of Counsel with respect to compliance with any restrictions on transfer or exchange imposed by this

Indenture, the Securities Act, other applicable law or the rules and regulations of any exchange on which the Notes may be traded, and the Trustee may rely and shall be protected in acting upon such direction and in accordance with such Officers' Certificate and Opinion of Counsel;

(j) The Trustee shall not be deemed to have knowledge of any Default or Event of Default or any other fact or event upon the occurrence of which it may be required to take action hereunder unless a Responsible Officer of the Trustee receives written notice thereof and such written notice refers specifically to this Indenture and the Notes.

Section 7.4 No Responsibility for Recitals, etc.

The recitals contained herein and in the Notes (except in the Trustee's certificate of authentication) shall be taken as the statements of the Company, and the Trustee assumes no responsibility for the correctness of the same. The Trustee makes no representations as to the validity or sufficiency of this Indenture or of the Notes. The Trustee shall not be accountable for the use or application by the Company of any Notes or the proceeds of any Notes.

Section 7.5 Trustee, Paying Agents or Registrar May Own Notes.

The Trustee, any paying agent or any Note Registrar, in its individual or any other capacity, may become the owner or pledgee of Notes with the same rights it would have if it were not Trustee, paying agent or Note Registrar.

Section 7.6 Monies to be Held in Trust.

Subject to the provisions of Section 11.5, all monies received by the Trustee shall, until used or applied as herein provided, be held in trust for the purposes for which they were received. Money held by the Trustee in trust hereunder need not be segregated from other funds except to the extent required by law. The Trustee shall be under no liability for interest on any money received by it hereunder except as may be agreed to in writing from time to time by the Company and the Trustee.

Section 7.7 Compensation and Expenses of Trustee.

The Company covenants and agrees to pay to the Trustee from time to time, and the Trustee shall be entitled to, such compensation as the Company and the Trustee shall from time to time agree in writing, for all services rendered by it hereunder in any capacity (which shall not be limited by any provision of law in regard to the compensation of a trustee of an express trust), and the Company shall pay or reimburse the Trustee upon its request for all reasonable expenses, disbursements and advances incurred or made by the Trustee in accordance with any of the provisions of this Indenture (including the reasonable compensation and the expenses and disbursements of its counsel and of all persons not regularly in its employ) except any such expense, disbursement or advance as may arise from its negligence or willful misconduct. The Company also covenants to indemnify each of the Trustee (in any capacity under this Indenture) and its officers, directors, employees, attorneys-in-fact and agents for, and to hold them

harmless against, any and all loss, liability, damage, claim or expense, including taxes (other than taxes based on the income of the Trustee), incurred without negligence or willful misconduct on their part and arising out of or in connection with the acceptance or administration of this trust or the offering and sale of the Notes, including the costs and expenses of defending themselves against any claim or liability in connection with the exercise or performance of any of their powers or duties hereunder. The Company and the Trustee intend that all expenses incurred by the Trustee and all compensation for services rendered by the Trustee in connection with an Event of Default specified in Section 6.1(f) or (g) (including the reasonable compensation and the expenses and disbursements of its counsel and of all persons not regularly in its employ) constitute expenses of administration under any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law. The obligations of the Company under this Section 7.7 shall be secured by a lien prior to that of the Notes upon all property and funds held or collected by the Trustee as such, except funds held in trust for the benefit of the holders of particular Notes. The obligations of the Company under this Section 7.7 shall survive the resignation or removal of the Trustee and satisfaction and discharge of this Indenture.

Section 7.8 Officers' Certificate as Evidence.

Except as otherwise provided in Section 7.1, whenever in the administration of the provisions of this Indenture the Trustee shall deem it necessary or desirable that a matter be proved or established prior to taking or omitting any action hereunder, such matter (unless other evidence in respect thereof be herein specifically prescribed) may, in the absence of negligence or bad faith on the part of the Trustee, be deemed to be conclusively proved and established by an Officers' Certificate delivered to the Trustee, and such Officers' Certificate, in the absence of negligence or bad faith on the part of the Trustee, shall be full warrant to the Trustee for any action taken or omitted by it under the provisions of this Indenture upon the faith thereof.

Section 7.9 Conflicting Interests of Trustee.

In the event that the Trust Indenture Act is applicable hereto, and if the Trustee has or shall acquire a conflicting interest within the meaning of Trust Indenture Act Section 310(b) and there exists a Default, the Trustee shall either eliminate such interest or resign, to the extent and in the manner provided by, and subject to the provisions of, the Trust Indenture Act and this Indenture.

Section 7.10 Eligibility of Trustee.

There shall at all times be a Trustee hereunder that shall be a person that satisfies the requirements of Trust Indenture Act Section 310(a)(1) and Section 310(a)(5) and that has a combined capital and surplus of at least \$50,000,000. If such person publishes reports of condition at least annually, pursuant to law or to the requirements of any supervising or examining authority, then for the purposes of this Section, the combined capital and surplus of such person shall be deemed to be its combined capital and surplus as set forth in its most recent report of condition so published. If at any time the Trustee shall cease to be eligible in accordance with the provisions of this Section, it shall resign immediately in the manner and with the effect hereinafter specified in this Article VII.

Section 7.11 Resignation or Removal of Trustee.

- (a) The Trustee may at any time resign by giving written notice of such resignation to the Company; and the Company shall mail, or cause to be mailed, notice thereof to the holders of Notes at their addresses as they shall appear on the Note Register. Upon receiving such notice of resignation, the Company shall promptly appoint a successor trustee by written instrument, in duplicate, executed by order of the Board of Directors, one copy of which instrument shall be delivered to the resigning Trustee and one copy to the successor trustee.
 - (b) In case at any time any of the following shall occur:
- (i) the Trustee shall fail to comply with Section 7.9 after written request therefor by the Company or by any Noteholder who has been a bona fide holder of a Note or Notes for at least six months; or
- (ii) the Trustee shall cease to be eligible in accordance with the provisions of Section 7.10 and shall fail to resign after written request therefor by the Company or by any such Noteholder; or
- (iii) the Trustee shall become incapable of acting, or shall be adjudged a bankrupt or insolvent, or a receiver of the Trustee or of its property shall be appointed, or any public officer shall take charge or control of the Trustee or of its property or affairs for the purpose of rehabilitation, conservation or liquidation;

then, in any such case, the Company may remove the Trustee and appoint a successor trustee by written instrument, in duplicate, executed by order of the Board of Directors, one copy of which instrument shall be delivered to the Trustee so removed and one copy to the successor trustee, or any Noteholder who has been a bona fide holder of a Note or Notes for at least six months may, on behalf of himself and all others similarly situated, petition any court of competent jurisdiction for the removal of the Trustee and the appointment of a successor trustee. Such court may thereupon, after such notice, if any, as it may deem proper and prescribe, remove the Trustee and appoint a successor trustee.

(c) The holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Notes at the time Outstanding may at any time remove the Trustee and nominate a successor trustee, which shall be deemed appointed as successor trustee unless within ten days after notice to the Company of such nomination the Company objects thereto, in which case the Trustee so removed or any Noteholder, upon the terms and conditions and otherwise as provided in the next paragraph, may petition any court of competent jurisdiction for an appointment of a successor trustee.

If no successor trustee shall have been so appointed and have accepted appointment within 60 days after removal or the mailing of such notice of resignation to the Noteholders, the Trustee resigning or being removed may petition any court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor trustee, or, in the case of either resignation or removal, any Noteholder who has been a bona fide holder of a Note or Notes for at least six months may, on behalf of himself and all others similarly situated, petition any such court for the appointment of a successor trustee. Such court may thereupon, after such notice, if any, as it may deem proper and prescribe, appoint a successor trustee.

(d) Any resignation or removal of the Trustee and appointment of a successor trustee pursuant to any of the provisions of this Section 7.11 shall become effective upon acceptance of appointment by the successor trustee as provided in Section 7.12.

Section 7.12 Acceptance by Successor Trustee.

Any successor trustee appointed as provided in Section 7.11 shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to the Company and to its predecessor trustee an instrument accepting such appointment hereunder, and thereupon, the resignation or removal of the predecessor trustee shall become effective and such successor trustee, without any further act, deed or conveyance, shall become vested with all the rights, powers, duties and obligations of its predecessor hereunder, with like effect as if originally named as trustee herein; but on the written request of the Company or of the successor trustee, the Trustee ceasing to act shall, upon payment of any amounts then due it pursuant to the provisions of Section 7.7, execute and deliver an instrument transferring to such successor trustee all the rights and powers of the Trustee so ceasing to act. Upon request of any such successor trustee, the Company shall execute any and all instruments in writing for more fully and certainly vesting in and confirming to such successor trustee all such rights and powers. Any Trustee ceasing to act shall, nevertheless, retain a lien upon all property and funds held or collected by such trustee as such, except for funds held in trust for the benefit of holders of particular Notes, to secure any amounts then due it pursuant to the provisions of Section 7.7.

No successor trustee shall accept appointment as provided in this Section 7.12 unless at the time of such acceptance such successor trustee shall be qualified under the provisions of Section 7.9 and eligible under the provisions of Section 7.10.

Upon acceptance of appointment by a successor trustee as provided in this Section 7.12, the Company shall mail or cause to be mailed notice of the succession of such Trustee hereunder to the holders of Notes at their addresses as they shall appear on the Note Register. If the Company fails to mail such notice within ten days after acceptance of appointment by the successor trustee, the successor trustee shall cause such notice to be mailed at the expense of the Company.

Section 7.13 Successor, by Merger, etc.

Any Person into which the Trustee may be merged or converted or with which it may be consolidated, or any Person resulting from any merger, conversion or consolidation to which the Trustee shall be a party, or any Person succeeding to all or substantially all of the corporate trust business of the Trustee, shall be the successor to the Trustee hereunder, provided such Person shall be qualified under the provisions of Section 7.9 and eligible under the provisions of Section 7.10 without the execution or filing of any paper or any further act on the part of the parties hereto.

Section 7.14 Limitation on Rights of Trustee as Creditor.

If and when the Trustee shall be or become a creditor of the Company (or any other Obligor on the Notes) and the Trust Indenture Act is applicable hereto, the Trustee shall be subject to the provisions of Trust Indenture Act Section 311(a) or, if applicable, Trust Indenture Act Section 311(b) regarding the collection of the claims against the Company (or any such other obligor).

ARTICLE VIII CONCERNING THE NOTEHOLDERS

Section 8.1 Action by Noteholders.

Whenever in this Indenture it is provided that the holders of a specified percentage in aggregate principal amount of the Notes may take any action (including the making of any demand or request, the giving of any notice, consent or waiver or the taking of any other action), the fact that at the time of taking any such action, the holders of such specified percentage have joined therein may be evidenced (a) by any instrument or any number of instruments of similar tenor executed by Noteholders in person or by agent or proxy appointed in writing, or (b) by a combination of such instrument or instruments and any such record of such a meeting of Noteholders. Whenever the Company or the Trustee solicits the taking of any action by the holders of the Notes, the Company or the Trustee may fix in advance of such solicitation, a date as the record date for determining holders entitled to take such action. The record date shall be not more than 15 days prior to the date of commencement of solicitation of such action.

Section 8.2 Proof of Execution by Noteholders.

Subject to the provisions of Sections 7.1 and 7.2, proof of the execution of any instrument by a Noteholder or by agent or proxy shall be sufficient if made in accordance with Section 7.3 hereof. The holding of Notes shall be proved by the Note Register or by a certificate of the Note Register.

Section 8.3 Who are Deemed Absolute Owners.

The Company, the Trustee, any paying agent and any Note Registrar may deem the person in whose name such Note shall be registered upon the books of the Company to be, and may treat such person as, the absolute owner of such Note (whether or not such Note shall be overdue and notwithstanding any notation of ownership or other writing thereon) for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such Note and for all other purposes; and neither the Company nor the Trustee nor any paying agent nor any Note Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary. All such payments so made to any holder for the time being, or upon order of such holder, shall be valid and, to the extent of the sum or sums so paid, effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability for monies payable upon any such Note.

The Depository shall be deemed to be the owner of the Global Note for all purposes, including receipt of notices to Noteholders and payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Notes. None of the Company, the Trustee (in its capacity as Trustee), any paying agent or the Note Registrar (or co-registrar) shall have any responsibility for any aspect of the records relating to or payments made on account of beneficial interests of the Global Note or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interests.

Section 8.4 Company-Owned Notes Disregarded.

In determining whether the holders of the requisite aggregate principal amount of Notes have concurred in any direction, consent, waiver or other action under this Indenture, Notes that are owned by the Company or any other Obligor on the Notes or by any person directly or indirectly controlling or controlled by or under direct or indirect common control with the Company or any other Obligor on the Notes shall be disregarded and deemed not to be Outstanding for the purpose of any such determination; provided that for the purposes of determining whether the Trustee shall be protected in relying on any such direction, consent, waiver or other action, only Notes that a Responsible Officer of the Trustee actually knows are so owned shall be so disregarded.

Notes so owned that have been pledged in good faith may be regarded as Outstanding for the purposes of this Section 8.4 if the pledgee shall establish to the satisfaction of the Trustee the pledger's right to vote such Notes and that the pledgee is not the Company, any other Obligor on the Notes or a person directly or indirectly controlling or controlled by or under direct or indirect common control with the Company or any such other obligor.

In the case of a dispute as to such right, any decision by the Trustee taken upon the advice of counsel shall be full protection to the Trustee. Upon request of the Trustee, the Company shall furnish to the Trustee promptly an Officers' Certificate listing and identifying all Notes, if any, known by the Company to be owned or held by or for the account of any of the above described persons; and subject to Section 7.1, the Trustee shall be entitled to accept such Officers' Certificate as conclusive evidence of the facts therein set forth and of the fact that all Notes not listed therein are Outstanding for the purpose of any such determination.

Section 8.5 Revocation of Consents, Future Holders Bound.

At any time prior to (but not after) the evidencing to the Trustee, as provided in Section 8.1, of the taking of any action by the holders of the percentage in aggregate principal amount of the Notes specified in this Indenture in connection with such action, any holder of a Note that is shown by the evidence to be included in the Notes the holders of which have consented to such action may, by filing written notice with the Trustee at its Corporate Trust Office and upon proof of holding as provided in Section 8.2, revoke such action so far as concerns such Note. Except as aforesaid, any such action taken by the holder of any Note shall be conclusive and binding upon such holder and upon all future holders and owners of such Note and of any Notes issued in exchange or substitution therefor, irrespective of whether any notation in regard thereto is made upon such Note or any Note issued in exchange or substitution therefor.

ARTICLE IX SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES

Section 9.1 Supplemental Indentures Without Consent of Noteholders.

The Company, when authorized by a Board Resolution, and the Trustee may from time to time and at any time enter into an indenture or indentures supplemental hereto for one or more of the following purposes:

- (a) to convey, transfer, assign, mortgage or pledge to the Trustee as security for the Notes, any property or assets;
- (b) to evidence the succession of another person to the Company, or successive successions, and the assumption by the Successor Company of the covenants, agreements and obligations of the Company pursuant to Article X;
- (c) to add to the covenants of the Company such further covenants, restrictions or conditions as the Board of Directors and the Trustee shall consider to be for the benefit of the holders of Notes and to make the occurrence, or the occurrence and continuance, of a default in any such additional covenants, restrictions or conditions a Default or an Event of Default permitting the enforcement of all or any of the several remedies provided in this Indenture as herein set forth; provided that in respect of any such additional covenant, restriction or condition, such supplemental indenture may provide for a particular period of grace after such default (which period may be shorter or longer than that allowed in the case of other defaults) or may provide for an immediate enforcement upon such default or may limit the remedies available to the Trustee upon such default;
- (d) to provide for the exchange of the Global Note for Notes to be issued in definitive form and to provide for exchangeability of such Notes with the Notes issued hereunder in fully registered form and to make all appropriate changes for such purpose;
- (e) to cure any ambiguity or to correct or supplement any provision contained herein or in any supplemental indenture that may be defective or inconsistent with any other provision contained herein or in any supplemental indenture, or to make such other provisions in regard to matters or questions arising under this Indenture that shall not adversely affect the interests of the holders of the Notes;
 - (f) to evidence and provide for the acceptance of appointment hereunder by a successor Trustee with respect to the Notes; or
- (g) to modify, eliminate or add to the provisions of this Indenture to such extent necessary to effect the qualification of this Indenture under the Trust Indenture Act (if applicable), or under any similar federal statute hereafter enacted (if applicable).

The Trustee is hereby authorized to join with the Company in the execution of any such supplemental indenture, to make any further appropriate agreements and stipulations that may be therein contained and to accept the conveyance, transfer and assignment of any property thereunder, but the Trustee shall not be obligated to, but may in its discretion, enter into any supplemental indenture that affects the Trustee's own rights, duties or immunities under this Indenture or otherwise.

Any supplemental indenture authorized by the provisions of this Section 9.1 may be executed by the Company and the Trustee without the consent of the holders of any of the Notes at the time Outstanding, notwithstanding any of the provisions of Section 9.2.

Section 9.2 Supplemental Indentures With Consent of Noteholders.

With the consent (evidenced as provided in Article VIII) of the holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Notes at the time Outstanding, the Company, when authorized by a Board Resolution, and the Trustee may from time to time and at any time enter into an indenture or indentures supplemental hereto for the purpose of adding any provisions to or changing in any manner or eliminating any of the provisions of this Indenture or any supplemental indenture or of modifying in any manner the rights of the Notes; provided that no such supplemental indenture shall (i) without the consent of the holders of each Note so affected, extend the fixed maturity of any Note or reduce the rate or extend the time of payment of interest thereon, or reduce the principal amount thereof or premium, if any, thereon or reduce any amount payable on redemption or repurchase thereof, alter the obligation of the Company to repurchase the Notes at the option of the holder upon the occurrence of a Change of Control or impair or affect the right of any Noteholder to institute suit for the payment thereof or make the principal thereof or interest or premium, if any, thereon payable in any coin or currency other than that provided in the Notes, or (ii) without the consent of the holders of all the Notes then Outstanding, reduce the aforesaid percentage of Notes, the holders of which are required to consent to any such supplemental indenture.

Upon the request of the Company, accompanied by a copy of a Board Resolution authorizing the execution of any such supplemental indenture, and upon the filing with the Trustee of evidence of the consent of Noteholders as aforesaid, the Trustee shall join with the Company in the execution of such supplemental indenture unless such supplemental indenture affects the Trustee's own rights, duties or immunities under this Indenture or otherwise, in which case the Trustee may in its discretion, but shall not be obligated to, enter into such supplemental indenture.

It shall not be necessary for the consent of the Noteholders under this Section 9.2 to approve the particular form of any proposed supplemental indenture, but it shall be sufficient if such consent shall approve the substance thereof.

Section 9.3 Effect of Supplemental Indentures.

Any supplemental indenture executed pursuant to the provisions of this Article IX shall comply with the Trust Indenture Act, as then in effect, if such supplemental indenture is then

required to so comply. Upon the execution of any supplemental indenture pursuant to the provisions of this Article IX, this Indenture shall be and be deemed to be modified and amended in accordance therewith and the respective rights, limitation of rights, obligations, duties and immunities under this Indenture of the Trustee, the Company and the holders of Notes shall thereafter be determined, exercised and enforced hereunder subject in all respects to such modifications and amendments and all the terms and conditions of any such supplemental indenture shall be and be deemed to be part of the terms and conditions of this Indenture for any and all purposes.

Section 9.4 Notation on Notes.

Notes authenticated and delivered after the execution of any supplemental indenture pursuant to the provisions of this Article IX may bear a notation in form approved by the Company as to any matter provided for in such supplemental indenture, but they need not do so. After notice to the Trustee, if the Company shall determine to add such a notation, new Notes so modified as to conform, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, to any modification of this Indenture contained in any such supplemental indenture may, at the Company's expense, be prepared and executed by the Company, authenticated by the Trustee (or an authenticating agent duly appointed by the Trustee pursuant to Section 13.11) and delivered in exchange for the Notes then Outstanding, upon surrender of such Notes then Outstanding.

Section 9.5 Evidence of Compliance of Supplemental Indenture to be Furnished to the Trustee.

The Company shall deliver to the Trustee, and the Trustee, subject to Sections 7.1 and 7.2, may rely conclusively upon, an Officers' Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel as conclusive evidence that any supplemental indenture executed pursuant hereto complies with the requirements of this Article IX.

ARTICLE X

CONSOLIDATION, MERGER, SALE, CONVEYANCE, TRANSFER AND LEASE

Section 10.1 Company may Consolidate, etc. on Certain Terms.

The Company shall not consolidate with or merge with or into, or convey, transfer or lease all or substantially all of its assets (determined on a consolidated basis) to any person unless: (i) either the Company is the resulting, surviving or transferee person (the "Successor Company") or the Successor Company is a person organized and existing under the laws of the United States or any State thereof or the District of Columbia, and the Successor Company (if not the Company) expressly assumes by a supplemental indenture, executed and delivered to the Trustee, in form satisfactory to the Trustee, all the obligations of the Company under this Indenture and the Notes, (ii) immediately after giving effect to such transaction, no Event of Default has happened and is continuing and (iii) the Company delivers to the Trustee an Officers' Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel, each stating that such consolidation, merger or transfer and such supplemental indenture (if any) comply with this Indenture.

Section 10.2 Successor Company to be Substituted.

In case of any such consolidation, merger, sale, conveyance, transfer or lease and upon the assumption by the Successor Company, by supplemental indenture, executed and delivered to the Trustee and satisfactory in form to the Trustee, of the due and punctual payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on all of the Notes and the due and punctual performance of all of the covenants and conditions of this Indenture to be performed by the Company, such Successor Company shall succeed to and be substituted for the Company, with the same effect as if it had been named herein as the party hereto. When a Successor Company duly assumes all the obligations of the Company pursuant to this Indenture and the Notes, the predecessor shall be released from all such obligations.

Section 10.3 Opinion of Counsel to be Given to Trustee.

The Company shall deliver to the Trustee, and the Trustee, subject to Sections 7.1 and 7.2, may rely conclusively upon, an Officers' Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel as conclusive evidence that any such consolidation, merger, sale, conveyance, transfer or lease and any such assumption complies with the provisions of this Article X.

ARTICLE XI

SATISFACTION AND DISCHARGE OF INDENTURE; UNCLAIMED MONEYS

Section 11.1 Legal Defeasance And Covenant Defeasance Of The Notes.

- (a) The Company may, at its option by Board Resolution, at any time, with respect to the Notes, elect to have either paragraph (b) or paragraph (c) below be applied to the Outstanding Notes upon compliance with the conditions set forth in paragraph (d).
- (b) Upon the Company's exercise under paragraph (a) of the option applicable to this paragraph (b), the Company shall be deemed to have been released and discharged from its obligations with respect to the Outstanding Notes on the date the conditions set forth in paragraph (d) below are satisfied (hereinafter, "Legal Defeasance"). For this purpose, such Legal Defeasance means that the Company shall be deemed to have paid and discharged the entire indebtedness represented by the Outstanding Notes, which shall thereafter be deemed to be "Outstanding" only for the purposes of the Sections of and matters under this Indenture referred to in clauses (i) and (ii) below and to have satisfied all its other obligations under such Notes and this Indenture insofar as such Notes are concerned, except for the following, which shall survive until otherwise terminated or discharged hereunder: (i) the rights of holders of Outstanding Notes to receive solely from the trust fund described in paragraph (d) below and as more fully set forth in such paragraph, payments in respect of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such Notes when such payments are due and (ii) obligations listed in Section 11.3.
- (c) Upon the Company's exercise under paragraph (a) of the option applicable to this paragraph (c), the Company shall be released and discharged from its obligations under any

covenant contained in Article IV, Article X and Section 3.4 with respect to the Outstanding Notes on and after the date the conditions set forth in paragraph (d) are satisfied (hereinafter, "covenant defeasance"), and the Notes shall thereafter be deemed to be not "Outstanding" for the purpose of any direction, waiver, consent or declaration or act of holders (and the consequences of any thereof) in connection with such covenants, but shall continue to be deemed "Outstanding" for all other purposes hereunder. For this purpose, such covenant defeasance means that, with respect to the Outstanding Notes, the Company may omit to comply with and shall have no liability in respect of any term, condition or limitation set forth in any such covenant, whether directly or indirectly, by reason of any reference elsewhere herein to any such covenant or by reason of any reference in any such covenant to any other provision herein or in any other document, and such omission to comply shall not constitute a Default or an Event of Default under Section 6.1, but, except as specified above, the remainder of this Indenture and such Notes shall be unaffected thereby.

- (d) The following shall be the conditions to application of either paragraph (b) or paragraph (c) above to the Outstanding Notes:
- (i) The Company shall have irrevocably deposited in trust with the Trustee, pursuant to an irrevocable trust and security agreement in form and substance satisfactory to the Trustee, cash or non-callable U.S. Government Obligations maturing as to principal and interest at such times, or a combination thereof, in such amounts as are sufficient, without consideration of the reinvestment of such interest and after payment of all federal, state and local taxes or other charges or assessments in respect thereof payable by the Trustee, in the opinion of a nationally recognized firm of independent public accountants expressed in a written certification thereof (in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Trustee) delivered to the Trustee, to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Outstanding Notes on the dates on which any such payments are due and payable in accordance with the terms of this Indenture and of the Notes as well as all other sums payable hereunder by the Company;
- (ii) (A) No Event of Default shall have occurred or be continuing on the date of such deposit, and (B) no Default or Event of Default under Section 6.1(f) or 6.1(g) shall occur on or before the 123rd day after the date of such deposit;
- (iii) Such deposit shall not result in a Default under this Indenture or a breach or violation of, or constitute a default under, any other instrument or agreement to which the Company is a party or by which it or its property is bound;
- (iv) In the case of a Legal Defeasance under paragraph (b) above, the Company shall have delivered to the Trustee an Opinion of Counsel in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Trustee stating that (A) the Company has received from, or there has been published by, the Internal Revenue Service a ruling applicable to such a defeasance or (B) since the date of this Indenture, there has been a change in the applicable federal income tax law, in either case to the effect that, and based thereon such opinion shall confirm that, the holders of the Notes shall not recognize income, gain or loss for federal income tax purposes as a result of such deposit, defeasance and discharge and shall be subject to federal income tax on the same amounts and in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such

deposit, defeasance and discharge had not occurred; and, in the case of a covenant defeasance under paragraph (c) above, the Company shall have delivered to the Trustee an Officers' Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Trustee, to the effect that holders of the Notes shall not recognize income, gain or loss for federal income tax purposes as a result of such deposit and defeasance and shall be subject to federal income tax on the same amounts and in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such deposit and defeasance had not occurred;

- (v) The holders shall have a perfected security interest under applicable law in the cash or U.S. Government Obligations deposited pursuant to Section 11.1(d)(i) above;
- (vi) The Company shall have delivered to the Trustee an Opinion of Counsel, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Trustee, to the effect that, after the passage of 123 days following the deposit, the trust funds shall not be subject to any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or similar law affecting creditors' rights generally;
 - (vii) Such defeasance shall not cause the Trustee to have a conflicting interest with respect to any securities of the Company; and
- (viii) The Company shall have delivered to the Trustee an Officers' Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Trustee, each stating that all conditions precedent specified herein relating to the defeasance contemplated by this Section 11.1 have been complied with; provided, that no deposit under clause (i) shall be effective to terminate the obligations of the Company under the Notes or this Indenture prior to the passage of 123 days following such deposit.

Section 11.2 Termination of Obligations upon Cancellation of the Notes.

In addition to the Company's rights under Section 11.1, the Company may terminate all of its obligations under this Indenture (subject to Section 11.3) when:

- (a)(i) all Notes theretofore authenticated and delivered (other than Notes that have been destroyed, lost or stolen and that have been replaced or paid as provided in Section 2.6) have been delivered to the Trustee for cancellation; and
 - (ii) the Company has paid or caused to be paid all other sums payable hereunder and under the Notes by the Company; or
- (b)(i) the Notes not previously delivered to the Trustee for cancellation shall have become due and payable or are by their terms to become due and payable within one year or are to be called for redemption under arrangements satisfactory to the Trustee upon delivery of notice, (ii) the Company shall have irrevocably deposited with the Trustee, as trust funds, cash, in an amount sufficient to pay principal of premium, if any, and interest on the Outstanding Notes, to maturity or redemption, as the case may be, (iii) such deposit shall not result in a breach or violation of, or constitute a default under, any agreement or instrument pursuant to which the Company is a party or by which it or its property is bound and (iv) the Company has

delivered to the Trustee an Officers' Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Trustee, each stating that all conditions related to such defeasance have been complied with.

Section 11.3 Survival of Certain Obligations.

Notwithstanding the satisfaction and discharge of this Indenture and of the Notes referred to in Section 11.1 or 11.2, the respective obligations of the Company and the Trustee under Sections 2.3, 2.4, 2.5, 2.6, 3.1, 4.2, 5.1, 6.4, 6.9, 7.6, 7.11, 11.5, 11.6 and 11.7 shall survive until the Notes are no longer Outstanding, and thereafter, the obligations of the Company and the Trustee under Sections 6.9, 7.6, 11.5, 11.6 and 11.7 shall survive. Nothing contained in this Article XI shall abrogate any of the rights, obligations or duties of the Trustee under this Indenture.

Section 11.4 Acknowledgment of Discharge by Trustee.

Subject to Section 11.7, after (i) the conditions of Section 11.1 or 11.2 have been satisfied, (ii) the Company has paid or caused to be paid all other sums payable hereunder by the Company and (iii) the Company has delivered to the Trustee an Officers' Certificate and an Opinion of Counsel, each stating that all conditions precedent referred to in clause (i) above relating to the satisfaction and discharge of this Indenture have been complied with, the Trustee upon written request shall acknowledge in writing the discharge of the Company's obligations under this Indenture except for those surviving obligations specified in Section 11.3.

Section 11.5 Application of Trust Assets.

The Trustee shall hold any cash or U.S. Government Obligations deposited with it in the irrevocable trust established pursuant to Section 11.1 or 11.2, as the case may be. The Trustee shall apply the deposited cash or the U.S. Government Obligations, together with earnings thereon in accordance with this Indenture and the terms of the irrevocable trust agreement established pursuant to Section 11.1 or 11.2, as the case may be, to the payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Notes. The cash or U.S. Government Obligations so held in trust and deposited with the Trustee in compliance with Section 11.1 or 11.2, as the case may be, shall not be part of the trust estate under this Indenture, but shall constitute a separate trust fund for the benefit of all holders entitled thereto. Except as specifically provided herein, the Trustee shall not be requested to invest any amounts held by it for the benefit of the holders or pay interest on uninvested amounts to any holder.

The Company shall pay and indemnify the Trustee against any tax, fee or other charge imposed on or assessed against the U.S. Government Obligations deposited pursuant to Section 11.1 hereof or Section 11.2 hereof or the principal and interest received in respect thereof other than any such tax, fee or other charge which by law is for the account of the holders of Outstanding Notes.

Section 11.6 Repayment to the Company; Unclaimed Money.

Subject to applicable laws governing escheat of such property, and upon termination of the trust established pursuant to Section 11.1 hereof or 11.2 hereof, as the case may be, the Trustee shall promptly pay to the Company upon written request any excess cash or U.S. Government Obligations held by them. Additionally, if amounts for the payment of principal, premium, if any, or interest remains unclaimed for two years, the Trustee shall, upon written request, pay such amounts back to the Company forthwith. Thereafter, all liability of the Trustee with respect to such amounts shall cease. After payment to the Company, holders entitled to such payment must look to the Company for such payment as general creditors unless an applicable abandoned property law designates another person.

Section 11.7 Reinstatement.

If the Trustee is unable to apply any cash or U.S. Government Obligations in accordance with Section 11.1 or 11.2 by reason of any legal proceeding or by reason of any order or judgment of any court or governmental authority enjoining, restraining or otherwise prohibiting such application, the Company's obligations under this Indenture and the Notes shall be revived and reinstated as though no deposit had occurred pursuant to Section 11.1 or 11.2 until such time as the Trustee is permitted to apply all such cash or U.S. Government Obligations in accordance with Section 11.1 or 11.2, as the case may be; provided that if the Company makes any payment of principal of, premium, if any, or interest on any Notes following the reinstatement of its obligations, the Company shall be subrogated to the rights of the holders of such Notes to receive such payment from the amounts held by the Trustee.

ARTICLE XII

IMMUNITY OF INCORPORATORS, SHAREHOLDERS, OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

Section 12.1 Indenture and Notes Solely Corporate Obligations.

No recourse for the payment of the principal of, or premium, if any, or interest on any Note, or for any claim based thereon or otherwise in respect thereof, and no recourse under or upon any obligation, covenant or agreement of the Company in this Indenture or in any supplemental indenture or in any Note, or because of the creation of any indebtedness represented thereby, shall be had against any incorporator, shareholder, officer or director, as such, past, present or future, of the Company or of any successor entity, either directly or through the Company or any successor entity, whether by virtue of any constitution, statute or rule of law, or by the enforcement of any assessment or penalty or otherwise; it being expressly understood that all such liability is hereby expressly waived and released as a condition of, and as a consideration for, the execution of this Indenture and the issuance of the Notes.

ARTICLE XIII MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 13.1 Addresses for Notices, etc.

Any notice or demand that by any provision of this Indenture is required or permitted to be given or served by the Trustee or by the holders of Notes on the Company shall be deemed to have been sufficiently given or made, for all purposes if given or served by being sent by prepaid overnight delivery or being deposited postage prepaid by registered or certified mail in a post office letter box addressed (until another address is filed by the Company with the Trustee) to Dynex Capital, Inc., 4551 Cox Road, Suite 300, Glen Allen, Virginia 23060, Attention: Chief Financial Officer with a copy to James J. Wheaton, Esq., Troutman Sanders LLP, 222 Central Park Ave, Suite 2000, Virginia Beach, Virginia, 23462. Any notice, direction, request or demand hereunder to or upon the Trustee shall be deemed to have been sufficiently given or made, for all purposes, if given or served by being sent by prepaid overnight delivery or being deposited postage prepaid by registered or certified mail in a post office letter box addressed to the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee.

The Trustee, by notice to the Company, may designate additional or different addresses for subsequent notices or communications.

Any notice or communication mailed to a Noteholder shall be mailed to him by first class mail, postage prepaid, at the address of such Noteholder as it appears on the Note Register and shall be sufficiently given to such Noteholder if so mailed within the time prescribed.

Failure to mail a notice or communication to a Noteholder or any defect in it shall not affect its sufficiency with respect to other Noteholders. If a notice or communication is mailed in the manner provided above, it is duly given, whether or not the addressee receives it.

Section 13.2 Communications by Holders with Other Holders.

Noteholders may communicate pursuant to Trust Indenture Act Section 312(b) with other Noteholders with respect to their rights under this Indenture or the Notes. The Company, the Trustee, the Note Registrar and any other person shall have the protection of Trust Indenture Act Section 312(c).

Section 13.3 Governing Law.

This Indenture shall be deemed to be a contract made under the substantive laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia and for all purposes shall be construed in accordance with the substantive laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia without regard to conflicts of laws principles thereof.

Section 13.4 Evidence of Compliance with Conditions Precedent; Certificates to Trustee.

Upon any application or demand by the Company to the Trustee to take any action under any of the provisions of this Indenture, including those actions set forth in Trust Indenture Act Section 314(c), the Company shall furnish to the Trustee an Officers' Certificate stating that all conditions precedent, if any, provided for in this Indenture relating to the proposed action have been complied with, and an Opinion of Counsel stating that, in the opinion of such counsel, all such conditions precedent have been complied with.

Each certificate or opinion provided for in this Indenture and delivered to the Trustee with respect to compliance with a condition or covenant provided for in this Indenture shall include: (1) a statement that the person making such certificate or opinion has read such covenant or condition, (2) a brief statement as to the nature and scope of the examination or investigation upon which the statement or opinion contained in such certificate or opinion is based, (3) a statement that, in the opinion of such person, he has made such examination or investigation as is necessary to enable him to express an informed opinion as to whether or not such covenant or condition has been complied with and (4) a statement as to whether or not, in the opinion of such person, such condition or covenant has been complied with.

Section 13.5 Legal Holidays.

In any case where any payment date, date fixed for redemption, stated maturity or Change of Control Purchase Date of any Note shall not be a Business Day, then (notwithstanding any other provision of this Indenture or of the Notes) payment of interest or principal (and premium, if any) need not be made on such date, but may be made on the next succeeding Business Day with the same force and effect as if made on the payment date, date fixed for redemption, Change of Control Purchase Date, or at the stated maturity; provided, that no interest shall accrue for the period from and after such payment date, date fixed for redemption, Change of Control Purchase Date or stated maturity, as the case may be.

Section 13.6 No Security Interest Created.

Nothing in this Indenture or in the Notes, expressed or implied, shall be construed to constitute a security interest under the Uniform Commercial Code or similar legislation, as now or hereafter enacted and in effect, in any jurisdiction where property of the Company or its Subsidiaries is located.

Section 13.7 Trust Indenture Act.

This Indenture is hereby made subject to, and shall be governed by, the provisions of the Trust Indenture Act required to be part of and to govern indentures qualified under the Trust Indenture Act.

Section 13.8 Trust Indenture Act Controls.

If any provision of this Indenture limits, qualifies, or conflicts with the duties imposed by operation of the Trust Indenture Act, the imposed duties, upon qualification of this Indenture under the Trust Indenture Act, shall control.

Section 13.9 Benefits of Indenture.

Nothing in this Indenture or in the Notes, expressed or implied, shall give to any person, other than the parties hereto, any paying agent, any authenticating agent, any conversion agent, any Note Registrar and their successors hereunder and the holders of Notes, any benefit or any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under this Indenture.

Section 13.10 Table of Contents, Headings etc.

The table of contents and the titles and headings of the articles and sections of this Indenture have been inserted for convenience of reference only, are not to be considered a part hereof, and shall in no way modify or restrict any of the terms or provisions hereof.

Section 13.11 Authenticating Agent.

The Trustee may appoint an authenticating agent that shall be authorized to act on its behalf and subject to its direction in the authentication and delivery of Notes in connection with the original issuance thereof and transfers and exchanges of Notes hereunder, including under Sections 2.4, 2.5, 2.6, 2.7 and 3.3, as fully to all intents and purposes as though the authenticating agent had been expressly authorized by this Indenture and those Sections to authenticate and deliver Notes. For all purposes of this Indenture, the authentication and delivery of Notes by the authenticating agent shall be deemed to be authentication and delivery of such Notes "by the Trustee" and a certificate of authentication executed on behalf of the Trustee by an authenticating agent shall be deemed to satisfy any requirement hereunder or in the Notes for the Trustee's certificate of authentication. Such authenticating agent shall at all times be a person eligible to serve as Trustee hereunder pursuant to Section 7.10.

Any Person into which any authenticating agent may be merged or converted or with which it may be consolidated, or any Person resulting from any merger, conversion or consolidation to which any authenticating agent shall be a party, or any Person succeeding to all or substantially all of the corporate trust business of any authenticating agent, shall be the successor to the authenticating agent hereunder, if such successor Person is otherwise eligible under this Section, without the execution or filing of any paper or any further act on the part of the parties hereto or the authenticating agent or such successor Person.

Any authenticating agent may at any time resign by giving written notice of resignation to the Trustee and to the Company. The Trustee may at any time terminate the agency of any authenticating agent by giving written notice of termination to such authenticating agent and to the Company. Upon receiving such a notice of resignation or upon such a termination, or in case at any time any authenticating agent shall cease to be eligible under this Section, the Trustee

shall promptly appoint a successor authenticating agent (which may be the Trustee), shall give written notice of such appointment to the Company and shall mail notice of such appointment to all holders of Notes as the names and addresses of such holders appear on the Note Register.

The Company agrees to pay to the authenticating agent from time to time reasonable compensation for its services.

The provisions of Sections 7.3, 7.4, 7.5, 8.3 and this Section 13.11 shall be applicable to any authenticating agent.

Section 13.12 Execution in Counterparts.

This Indenture may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument.

Wachovia Bank National Association hereby accepts the trusts in this Indenture declared and provided, upon the terms and conditions hereinabove set forth.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Indenture to be duly signed and attested, all as of the date first written above.

	DYNEX	DYNEX CAPITAL, INC.	
	By:		
	Name: Title:	Stephen J. Benedetti Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President	
Attest:			
Name: Title:			
	WACHO as Tru	OVIA BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, rustee	
	By:		
	Name:		
	Title:		
Attest:			

EXHIBIT A

FORM OF GLOBAL NOTE

[FORM OF FACE OF NOTE]

UNLESS THIS SENIOR NOTE IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY (55 WATER STREET, NEW YORK, NEW YORK) TO THE ISSUER OR ITS AGENT FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY SENIOR NOTE ISSUED IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR SUCH OTHER NAME AS REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY AND ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO., ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL SINCE THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.

THIS SENIOR NOTE IS A GLOBAL SECURITY WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE INDENTURE HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AND IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF A DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE THEREOF. THIS SENIOR NOTE MAY NOT BE EXCHANGED IN WHOLE OR IN PART FOR A SECURITY REGISTERED, AND NO TRANSFER OF THIS SENIOR NOTE IN WHOLE OR IN PART MAY BE REGISTERED, IN THE NAME OF ANY PERSON OTHER THAN SUCH DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE THEREOF, EXCEPT IN THE LIMITED CIRCUMSTANCES DESCRIBED IN THE INDENTURE.

, 2004 CUSIP

DYNEX CAPITAL, INC.

26817Q AE 0

9.50% Senior Notes Due 2007

DYNEX CAPITAL, INC., a corporation duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia (the "Company"), which term includes any Successor Company under the Indenture referred to on the reverse hereof, for value received hereby promises to pay to Cede & Co. or registered assigns, the principal sum of Forty Million Dollars (\$40,000,000) as provided herein (subject to adjustment as set forth in the fourth paragraph hereof), at the office or agency of the Company maintained for that purpose in Richmond, Virginia, or, at the option of the holder of this Global Note, at the office of the Trustee, in such coin or currency of the United States of America as at the time of payment shall be legal tender for the payment of public and private debts, and to pay interest, semiannually, on March 31 and September 30, or if such date is not a Business Day, the next succeeding Business Day (each a "Payment Date"), commencing September 30, 2004, on the outstanding principal balance of this Global Note at said office or agency, in like coin or currency, at the rate per annum specified in the title of this Global Note, from the earlier of April 7, 2004 or the date of this Global Note, or from the most recent Payment Date preceding the date of this Global Note to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, unless the date of this Global Note to gether with all accrued but unpaid interest hereon will be immediately due and payable in full.

Any interest on any Note that is payable, but is not punctually paid or duly provided for, on any said March 31 or September 30 (herein called "Defaulted Interest") shall forthwith cease to be payable to the Noteholder on the relevant record date by virtue of his having been such Noteholder; and such Defaulted Interest shall be paid by the Company, at its election in each case, either (i) by notifying the Trustee of a special record date, the amount of interest to be paid on such special record date and the date of payment (which shall not be less than 25 days after receipt by the Trustee of such notice, unless the Trustee shall consent to an earlier date) and depositing with the Trustee an amount of money equal to the aggregate amount to be paid in respect of such Defaulted Interest on making arrangements satisfactory to the Trustee for such deposit or (ii) in any other lawful manner not inconsistent with the requirements of any securities exchange on which the Notes may be listed, and upon such notice as may be required by such exchange, if, after notice to the Trustee, the Trustee deems such manner of payment to be practicable.

The interest so payable on any March 31 and September 30 will be paid to the person in whose name this Global Note (or one or more Predecessor Notes) is registered at the close of business on the record date, which shall be the March 15 and September 15 (record date)

(whether or not a Business Day) next preceding such March 31 and September 30, respectively; provided that any such interest not punctually paid or duly provided for shall be payable as provided in the Indenture. Interest shall be paid by check mailed to the registered holder at the registered address of such person unless other arrangements are made in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture.

The Company will have the right to prepay this Global Note in part or in its entirety, including all accrued Interest due thereon, at its option, anytime prior to maturity without penalty.

This Global Note shall represent all of the outstanding Notes and shall not be exchangeable for definitive Notes except as expressly provided in the Indenture. Subject to the terms of the Indenture and the execution and delivery of a supplemental indenture, the aggregate principal amount of this Global Note may from time to time be reduced or increased to reflect exchanges of a part of this Global Note for definitive Notes or exchanges of definitive Notes for a part of this Global Note, redemptions or repurchases of a part of this Global Note or transfers of a part of this Global Note or transfers of a part of this Global Note effected by delivery of definitive Notes, in each case, and in any such case, by means of notations on the Schedule of Exchanges, Redemptions, Repurchases, Cancellations and Transfers on the last page hereof. Subject to the first sentence of this paragraph, (i) exchanges of a part of this Global Note for definitive Notes, (ii) exchanges of definitive Notes for a part of this Global Note, (iii) redemptions or repurchases of a part of this Global Note, (iv) cancellations of a part of this Global Note, (v) transfers of definitive Notes in return for a part of this Global Note and (vi) transfers of a part of this Global Note, Repurchases, Cancellations and Transfers are made by the Trustee, or the Custodian at the direction of the Trustee, to reflect the appropriate reduction or increase, as the case may be, in the aggregate principal amount of this Global Note resulting therefrom or as a consequence thereof.

Reference is made to the further provisions of this Global Note set forth on the reverse hereof. Such further provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as though fully set forth at this place.

This Global Note shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose until the certificate of authentication hereon shall have been manually signed by the Trustee or a duly authorized authenticating agent under the Indenture.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Global Note to be duly executed under its corporate seal.						
	DYNEX	DYNEX CAPITAL, INC.				
	By:					
	Name: Title:	Stephen J. Benedetti Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer				
Attest:						
Name: Fitle:						

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

Dated:	, 2004		
	This is one of the Notes described in the within-named Indenture.		
		Wacho	via Bank, National Association, as Trustee
		Ву:	
		A	authorized Signatory

[FORM OF REVERSE OF NOTE]

DYNEX CAPITAL, INC.

9.50% Senior Notes Due 2007

This Global Note is one of a duly authorized issue of Notes of the Company, designated as its 9.50% Senior Notes Due 2007 (herein called the "Notes"), limited to the aggregate principal amount of \$40,000,000, all issued or to be issued under and pursuant to an Indenture dated as of _______, 2004 (the "Indenture"), between the Company and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"), to which Indenture and all indentures supplemental thereto reference is hereby made for a complete description of the rights, limitations of rights, obligations, duties and immunities thereunder of the Trustee, the Company and the holders of the Notes. Each Note is subject to, and qualified by, all such terms as set forth in the Indenture, certain of which are summarized hereon, and each holder of a Note is referred to the corresponding provisions of the Indenture for a complete statement of such terms. To the extent that there is any inconsistency between the summary provisions set forth in the Notes and the Indenture, the provisions of the Indenture shall govern. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Global Note shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Indenture.

In case an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, the principal of, premium, if any, and accrued interest on all Notes may be declared, and upon said declaration shall become, due and payable, in the manner, with the effect and subject to the conditions provided in the Indenture.

The Indenture contains provisions permitting the Company and the Trustee, with the consent of the holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Notes at the time Outstanding, evidenced as in the Indenture provided, to execute supplemental indentures adding any provisions to or changing in any manner or eliminating any of the provisions of the Indenture or of any supplemental indenture or modifying in any manner the rights of the holders of the Notes; provided that no such supplemental indenture shall (i) extend the fixed maturity of any Note, or reduce the rate or extend the time of payment of interest thereon, or reduce the principal amount thereof or premium, if any, thereon, or reduce any amount payable on redemption or repurchase thereof, alter the obligation of the Company to repurchase the Notes at the option of the holders upon the occurrence of a Change of Control, or impair or affect the right of any Noteholder to institute suit for the payment thereof, or make the principal thereof or interest or premium, if any, thereon payable in any coin or currency other than that provided in the Notes, subject to the terms set forth in the Indenture without the consent of the holder of each Note so affected or (ii) reduce the aforesaid percentage of Notes, the holders of which are required to consent to any such supplemental indenture, without the consent of the holders of all Notes then Outstanding. The Company and the Trustee may amend or supplement the Indenture without notice to or consent of any holder of Notes for certain purposes specified in the Indenture. It is also provided in the Indenture that, prior to any declaration accelerating the maturity of the Notes, the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Notes at the time Outstanding may on behalf of the holders of all of the Notes waive any past Default or Event of Default under the Indenture and its consequences except a default in the payment of interest or premium, if any, on or

the principal of any of the Notes, or a default in respect of a covenant or provision of the Indenture that under Article IX thereof cannot be modified or amended without the consent of the holders of all Notes then Outstanding. Any such consent or waiver by the holder of this Global Note (unless revoked as provided in the Indenture) shall be conclusive and binding upon such holder and upon all future holders and owners of this Global Note and any Notes that may be issued in exchange or substitution hereof, irrespective of whether or not any notation thereof is made upon this Global Note or such other Notes.

No reference herein to the Indenture and no provision of this Global Note or of the Indenture shall alter or impair the obligation of the Company, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of and any premium and interest on this Global Note at the place, at the respective times, at the rate and in the coin or currency herein prescribed.

Interest on the Notes shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day months.

Subject to the terms of the Indenture, the Notes are issuable in registered form without coupons in denominations of \$1,000 principal amount and integral multiples thereof. At the office or agency of the Company maintained for that purpose in Richmond, Virginia, and in the manner and subject to the limitations provided in the Indenture, without payment of any service charge but with payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax, assessment or other governmental charge that may be imposed in connection therewith, Notes may be exchanged for a like aggregate principal amount of Notes of other authorized denominations.

The Notes may be redeemed at the Company's option, upon notice as set forth in the Indenture, in whole at any time or in part from time to time, at the price of 100% of the outstanding principal amount, together with accrued and unpaid interest to the date fixed for redemption.

If a Change of Control shall occur at any time, then each holder of Notes shall have the right to require that the Company repurchase such holder's Notes in whole or in part in integral multiples of \$1,000 at a purchase price in cash in an amount equal to 101% of the remaining outstanding principal balance of such Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the repurchase date pursuant to an offer to be made by the Company and in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Indenture.

Upon due presentment for registration of transfer of this Global Note at the office or agency of the Company maintained for that purpose in Richmond, Virginia, a new Note or Notes of authorized denominations for a like aggregate principal amount will be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor, subject to the conditions and limitations provided in the Indenture, without charge except for any tax, assessment or other governmental charge imposed in connection therewith.

The Company, the Trustee, any authenticating agent, any paying agent and any Note Registrar may deem and treat the registered holder hereof as the absolute owner of this Global Note (whether or not this Global Note shall be overdue and notwithstanding any notation of ownership or other writing hereon made by anyone other than the Company or any Note Registrar), for the purpose of receiving payment hereof, or on account hereof, and for all other purposes, and neither the Company nor the Trustee nor any other authenticating agent nor any paying agent nor any Note Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary. All payments made to or upon the order of such registered holder shall, to the extent of the sum or sums paid, satisfy and discharge liability for monies payable on this Global Note.

No recourse for the payment of the principal of or any premium or interest on this Global Note, or for any claim based hereon or otherwise in respect hereof, and no recourse under or upon any obligation, covenant or agreement of the Company in the Indenture or any indenture supplemental thereto or in any Note, or because of the creation of any indebtedness represented thereby, shall be had against any incorporator, shareholder, officer or director, as such, past, present or future, of the Company or of any Successor Company, either directly or through the Company or any Successor Company, whether by virtue of any constitution, statute or rule of law or by the enforcement of any assessment or penalty or otherwise, all such liability being, by the acceptance hereof and as part of the consideration for the issue hereof, expressly waived and released.

[FORM OF OPTION TO ELECT REPAYMENT

UPON A CHANGE OF CONTROL

To: Dynex Capital, Inc.

The undersigned registered owner of this Global Note hereby irrevocably acknowledges receipt of a notice from Dynex Capital, Inc. (the "Company") as to the occurrence of a Change of Control with respect to the Company and requests and instructs the Company to repay the entire principal amount of this Global Note, or the portion thereof (which is \$1,000 principal amount or an integral multiple thereof) below designated, in accordance with the terms of the Indenture referred to in this Global Note, together with accrued interest to such date, to the registered holder hereof.

Dated:			
Dateu.	Signature(s)		
	Social Security or Other Taxpayer Identification Number		
	Principal amount to be repaid (if less than all): \$		

NOTICE: The option to elect payment upon a Change of Control must correspond with the name as written upon the face of the Note in every particular without alteration or enlargement or any change whatever.

	[FORM OF ASSIGN	NMENTJ	
For value received assignee) the within Note, and hereby irrevocably consubstitution in the premises.			(please insert social security or other identifying number of d Note on the books of the Company, with full power of
Dated:			
Signature(s)			
Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible Guaran signature guarantee program pursuant to Securities an		gs and loan association	s and credit unions) with membership in an approved
Signature Guarantee			
NOTICE: The assignment must correspond with the n	name as written upon the face of the Note ir	n every particular witho	out alteration or enlargement or any change whatever.
NOTICE: Transfers are subject to the limitations set for	orth in the Indenture.		

SCHEDULE A

SCHEDULE OF EXCHANGES, REDEMPTIONS, REPURCHASES, CANCELLATIONS AND TRANSFERS

The initial principal amount of this Global Note is U.S. [\$40,000,000.] The following additions to principal, redemptions, repurchases, exchanges of a part of this Global Note for an interest in the Global Note or definitive Notes have been made:

Principal Amount Added on Exchange of Interest in the Global Note or Definitive Notes Principal Amount Redeemed, Repurchased Exchanged for Interest in the Global Note or Definitive Notes

Remaining Principal Amount Outstanding Following such Transaction

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM T-1

STATEMENT OF ELIGIBILITY UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 OF A CORPORATION DESIGNATED TO ACT AS TRUSTEE

CHECK IF AN APPLICATION TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY OF A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO SECTION 305(b)(2)

WACHOVIA BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

(Exact Name of Trustee as Specified in its Charter)

22-1147033

(I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)

301 S. College Street, Charlotte, North Carolina (Address of Principal Executive Offices)

28288-0630

(Zip Code)

WACHOVIA BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

1021 East Cary Street, 3rd Floor Richmond, Virginia 23219

Attention: Corporate Trust Administration

(804) 697-7106

(Name, address and telephone number of Agent for Service)

DYNEX CAPITAL, INC.

(Exact Name of Obligor as Specified in its Charter)

Virginia

(State or other jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization)

52-1549373

(I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)

4551 Cox Road, Suite 300 Glen Allen Virginia

(Address of Principal Executive Offices)

23060

(Zip Code)

9.50% Senior Notes due 2007 (Title of Indenture Securities)

1. General information.

Furnish the following information as to the trustee:

(a) Name and address of each examining or supervisory authority to which it is subject:

Comptroller of the Currency

United States Department of the Treasury

Washington, D.C. 20219

Federal Reserve Bank

Richmond, Virginia 23219

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

Washington, D.C. 20429

(b) Whether it is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers.

Yes.

2. Affiliations with the obligor.

If the obligor is an affiliate of the trustee, describe each such affiliation.

None.

3. Voting securities of the trustee.

Furnish the following information as to each class of voting securities of the trustee:

Not applicable - see answer to Item 13.

4. Trusteeships under other indentures.

If the trustee is a trustee under another indenture under which any other securities, or certificates of interest or participation in any other securities, of the obligor are outstanding, furnish the following information:

Not applicable - see answer to Item 13.

5. Interlocking directorates and similar relationships with the obligor or underwriters.

If the trustee or any of the directors or executive officers of the trustee is a director, officer, partner, employee, appointee, or representative of the obligor or of any underwriter for the obligor, identify each such person having any such connection and state the nature of each such connection.

Not applicable - see answer to Item 13.

6. Voting securities of the trustee owned by the obligor or its officials.

Furnish the following information as to the voting securities of the trustee owned beneficially by the obligor and each director, partner, and executive officer of the obligor:

Not applicable - see answer to Item 13.

7. Voting securities of the trustee owned by underwriters or their officials.

Furnish the following information as to the voting securities of the trustee owned beneficially by each underwriter for the obligor and each director, partner, and executive officer of each such underwriter:

Not applicable - see answer to Item 13.

8. Securities of the obligor owned or held by the trustee.

Furnish the following information as to securities of the obligor owned beneficially or held as collateral security for obligations in default by the trustee:

Not applicable - see answer to Item 13.

9. Securities of underwriters owned or held by the trustee.

If the trustee owns beneficially or holds as collateral security for obligations in default any securities of an underwriter for the obligor, furnish the following information as to each class of securities of such underwriter any of which are so owned or held by the trustee:

Not applicable - see answer to Item 13.

10. Ownership or holdings by the trustee of voting securities of certain affiliates or security holders of the obligor.

If the trustee owns beneficially or holds as collateral security for obligations in default voting securities of a person who, to the knowledge of the trustee (1) owns 10 percent or more of the voting stock of the obligor or (2) is an affiliate, other than a subsidiary, of the obligor, furnish the following information as to the voting securities of such person:

Not applicable - see answer to Item 13.

11. Ownership or holdings by the trustee of any securities of a person owning 50 percent or more of the voting securities of the obligor.

If the trustee owns beneficially or holds as collateral security for obligations in default any securities of a person who, to the knowledge of the trustee, owns 50 percent or more of the voting securities of the obligor, furnish the following information as to each class of securities of such person any of which are so owned or held by the trustee:

Not applicable - see answer to Item 13.

12. Indebtedness of the obligor to the Trustee.

Except as noted in the instructions, if the obligor is indebted to the trustee, furnish the following information:

Not applicable - see answer to Item 13.

13. Defaults by the Obligor.

(a) State whether there is or has been a default with respect to the securities under this indenture. Explain the nature of any such default.

None

None.

(b) If the trustee is a trustee under another indenture under which any other securities, or certificates of interest or participation in any other securities, of the obligor are outstanding, or is trustee for more than one outstanding series of securities under the indenture, state whether there has been a default under any such indenture or series, identify the indenture or series affected, and explain the nature of any such default.

14. Affiliations with the Underwriters.

If any underwriter is an affiliate of the trustee, describe each such affiliation.

Not applicable - see answer to Item 13.

15. Foreign trustee.

Identify the order or rule pursuant to which the trustee is authorized to act as sole trustee under indentures qualified or to be qualified under the Act.

Not applicable - trustee is a national banking association organized under the laws of the United States.

16. List of Exhibits.

List below all exhibits filed as part of this statement of eligibility.

- " 1. Copy of Articles of Association of the trustee as now in effect.*
- 2. Copy of the Certificate of the Comptroller of the Currency dated March 27, 2002, evidencing the authority of the trustee to transact business.*
- 3. Copy of the Certification of Fiduciary Powers of the trustee by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency dated March 27, 2002.*
- 4. Copy of existing by-laws of the trustee.**
- 5. Copy of each indenture referred to in Item 4, if the obligor is in default.

Not Applicable.

- x 6. Consent of the trustee required by Section 321(b) of the Act.
- x 7. Copy of report of condition of the trustee published pursuant to the requirements of its supervising authority.
- 8. Copy of any order pursuant to which the foreign trustee is authorized to act as sole trustee under indentures qualified or to be qualified under the Act. Not Applicable.
- 9. Consent to service of process required of foreign trustees pursuant to Rule 10a-4 under the Act.

Not Applicable.

- * Previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 11, 2002 as an Exhibit to Form T-1 (in connection with Registration Statement Number 333-86036) and incorporated by reference herein.
- ** Previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 13, 2003 as an Exhibit to Form T-1 (in connection with Registration Statement Number 333-105207) and incorporated by reference herein.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, the trustee, Wachovia Bank, National Association, a national banking association organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America, has duly caused this Statement of Eligibility and Qualification to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, all in the City of Richmond and the Commonwealth of Virginia, on the 23rd day of January, 2004.

Wachovia Bank, National Association

By: /s/ Stephanie E. Haysley

Stephanie E. Haysley Vice President

Exhibit T-6

CONSENT OF THE TRUSTEE

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 321(b) of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, and in connection with the proposed issue of Dynex Capital, Inc. Senior Notes, Wachovia Bank, National Association, hereby consents that reports of examinations by Federal, State, Territorial or District authorities may be furnished by such authorities to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request therefor.

Wachovia Bank, National Association

By: /s/ Stephanie E. Haysley

Stephanie E. Haysley Vice President

Richmond, Virginia

January 23, 2004

REPORT OF CONDITION

Consolidating domestic and foreign subsidiaries of the Wachovia Bank, National Association at the close of business on September 30, 2003 published in response to call made by Comptroller of the Currency, under Title 12, United States Code, Section 161. Charter Number 1 Comptroller of the Currency.

Statement of Resources and Liabilities

ASSETS	
Thousand of Dollars	
Cash and balance due from depository institutions:	
Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin	11,680,000
Interest-bearing balances	748,000
Securities	//////
Held-to-maturity securities (from Schedule RC-B, column A)	0
Available-for-sale securities (from schedule RC-B, column D)	84,131,000
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell	0
Federal funds sold in domestic offices	517,000
Securities purchased under agreements to resell	4,731,000
Loans and lease financing receivables (from Schedule RC-C):	
Loan and leases held for sale	10,595,000
Loan and leases, net of unearned income	163,332,000
LESS: Allowance for loan and lease losses	2,572,000
LESS: Allocated transfer risk reserve	0
Loans and leases, net of unearned income and allowance (item.4.b misus 4.c)	160,760,000
Trading assets (from Schedule RC-D)	
Premises and fixed assets (including capitalized leases)	3,833,000
Other real estate owned (from Schedule RC-M)	153,000
Investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies (from Schedule RC-M)	767,000
Customer's liability to this bank on acceptances outstanding	732,000
Intangible assets	
Goodwill	9,504,000
Other intangible assets (from Schedule RC-M)	1,514,000
Other assets (from Schedule RC-F)	26,534,000
Total assets	344,056,000

LIABILITIES

Deposits:	
In domestic offices	194,540,000
Noninterest-bearing	21,592,000
Interest-bearing	172,948,000
In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs (from Schedule RC-E, part II)	13,980,000
Noninterest-bearing	33,000
Interest-bearing	13,947,000
Federal funds purchased in domestic offices(2)	5,536,000
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase(3)	24,250,000
Trading liabilities(from Schedule RC-D)	19,430,000
Other borrowed money (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under Capitalized leases)(from Schedule RC-M)	30,910,000
Bank's liability on acceptances executed and outstanding	743,000
Subordinated notes and debentures.	8,549,000
Other liabilities	13,188,000
Total liabilities	311,126,000
Minority Interest in consolidated subsidiaries	1,956,000

EQUITY CAPITAL	
Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus	0
Common Stock	455,000
Surplus	24,178,000
Retained Earnings	4,696,000
Accumulated other comprehensive income	1,645,000
Other Equity Capital components	0
Total equity capital (sum of item 23 through 27)	30,974,000
Total liabilities and equity capital (sum of items 21, 22, and 28)	344,056,000